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WHEREUPON, the f o l l o w i n g proceedings were had a t 

12:37 p.m.: 

EXAMINER CATANACH: We'll c a l l the hearing back 

t o order a t t h i s time, and a t t h i s time w e ' l l c a l l Case 

11,089. 

MR. CARROLL: A p p l i c a t i o n of Meridian O i l , I n c . , 

t o c o n t r a c t the v e r t i c a l l i m i t s of the Barker Creek-Paradox 

(Pennsylvanian) Pool, the amendment of D i v i s i o n Order 

Number R-46, and the concomitant c r e a t i o n of th r e e gas 

pools, each w i t h s p e c i a l r u l e s and r e g u l a t i o n s t h e r e f o r , 

San Juan County, New Mexico. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are ther e appearances i n t h i s 

case? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, I'm Tom K e l l a h i n of 

the Santa Fe law f i r m of K e l l a h i n and K e l l a h i n , appearing 

on behalf of Meridian O i l , I nc. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: A d d i t i o n a l appearances? 

MR. VAUGHN: Mr. Examiner, l e t me leave t h i s w i t h 

you. I don't have a card. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. 

MR. VAUGHN: My name i s Grant Vaughn. I'm A c t i n g 

F i e l d S o l i c i t o r f o r the US Department of the I n t e r i o r here 

i n t he Santa Fe f i e l d o f f i c e . 

I have w i t h me today S h e r r i Thompson, Petroleum 

Engineer, Colorado BLM State O f f i c e ; Kent Hoffman, 
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Supervisory Geologist, San Juan Resource Area, BLM, out of 

Durango, Colorado; and Mr. Ken Young, Petroleum Engineer 

with the Albuquerque Office, Bureau of Indian A f f a i r s . 

Our reason for being here i s t o make a 

preliminary statement and then t o observe the proceeding 

today. I f you'd l i k e that statement now or — 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Yeah, that would be f i n e . 

MR. VAUGHN: Okay, thank you. 

I'm here at the request of the Bureau of Land 

Management and the Regional S o l i c i t o r f o r the Southwest 

Region. 

We make t h i s appearance t o assert that the State 

of New Mexico and t h i s board do not have the auth o r i t y to 

render a f i n a l decision i n t h i s matter here before i t 

today. 

Federal law i s very clear that operation of o i l 

and gas leases on Indian lands are subject t o the ultimate 

j u r i s d i c t i o n of the Secretary of the I n t e r i o r . 

The Indian Minerals Leasing Act states, A l l 

operations under any o i l , gas or other mineral lease issued 

pursuant t o the terms of these sections or any other act 

a f f e c t i n g r e s t r i c t e d Indian lands s h a l l be subject t o the 

rules and regulations promulgated by the Secretary of the 

I n t e r i o r . I n the discretion of the said Secretary, any 

lease f o r o i l or gas issued under the provisions of these 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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sect i o n s s h a l l be made subject t o the terms of any 

reasonable cooperative u n i t or other plan approved or 

pr e s c r i b e d by said Secretary, p r i o r or subsequent t o the 

issuance of any such lease which involves the development 

or p r o d u c t i o n of o i l or gas from land covered by such 

lease. 

That's 25 United States Code, Section 396, small 

d. 

Regulations pursuant t o t h i s a u t h o r i t y issued by 

the Secretary s t a t e , O i l and gas leases issued under the 

p r o v i s i o n s of the r e g u l a t i o n s i n t h i s p a r t s h a l l be subject 

t o i m p o s i t i o n by the Secretary of the I n t e r i o r of such 

r e s t r i c t i o n s as t o time or times f o r the d r i l l i n g of w e l l s 

and as t o the production from any w e l l or w e l l s as i n h i s 

judgment may be necessary f o r or proper. The Secretary may 

take i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n , among other t h i n g s , the f e d e r a l 

laws, the s t a t e laws, r e g u l a t i o n s by the competent f e d e r a l 

or s t a t e a u t h o r i t i e s , l a w f u l agreements among operators 

r e g u l a t i n g e i t h e r d r i l l i n g or production or both, and any 

r e g u l a t o r y a c t i o n desired by t r i b a l a u t h o r i t i e s . A l l such 

leases s h a l l be subject t o any cooperative or u n i t 

development plan a f f e c t i n g the lease plans t h a t may be 

r e q u i r e d by the Secretary, but no lease s h a l l be included 

i n any cooperative or u n i t plan w i t h o u t p r i o r approval of 

the Secretary of the I n t e r i o r and consent of the I n d i a n 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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t r i b e affected. 

That's 25 CFR Section 211.21. 

The federal courts have sustained these 

p r i n c i p l e s i n Cheyenne Arapaho t r i b e s o f Oklahoma v . Un i t ed 

States — that's 966 F. 2nd, 583, 10th C i r c u i t case from 

1992; A s s i n i b o i n and Sioux Tr ibes v . Board o f O i l and Gas 

Conservation, 792 F. 2nd 782, 9th C i r c u i t , 1986; and Kenai 

O i l and Gas v . I n t e r i o r , 671 F. 2nd 383, 10th C i r c u i t , 

1982. 

The Assiniboin and Sioux case out of Fort Peck i s 

of i n t e r e s t , because i t holds that the Department may not 

delegate i t s decision-making r e s p o n s i b i l i t y with regard to 

Indian o i l and gas to the states. However, the decision 

recognizes th a t the Department may properly cooperate with 

state agencies t o create a record through evidentiary 

hearings or other consultations. 

I n the language of the court, quote, We do not 

suggest th a t cooperation, including possibly l i m i t e d 

subdelegation by the Secretary to the state board of 

nondiscretionary a c t i v i t i e s , such as compiling, hearing and 

tran s m i t t i n g technical information, might not be 

permissible and desirable. 

That's 792 F. 2nd at 795. 

The reason why the Department may not f u l l y 

delegate decision-making authority t o the state i s simply 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 t h a t the Department acts as trustee f o r the Indian t r i b e 

2 and must take i n t o consideration factors other than the 

3 usual technical information that state o i l and gas boards 

4 are usually concerned with. 

5 P r i n c i p a l l y , the Department must give careful 

6 consideration to the views of the t r i b e i n reviewing 

7 economic factors a f f e c t i n g the t r i b e and the resource. And 

8 I r e f e r you t o the Kenai O i l and Cheyenne Arapaho cases for 

9 those p r i n c i p l e s . 

10 We note that the BLM has proposed an arrangement 

11 which we understand now has been favorably received by the 

12 Commission, tha t we're w i l l i n g t o cooperate with t h i s board 

13 i n f a c t - f i n d i n g hearings such as t h i s today, and t h a t i s 

14 why we're here. The BLM i s very pleased to have you 

15 conduct t h i s technical review today. 

16 But what we request i s that a f t e r t h i s hearing i s 

17 over, th a t the board and the Applicant recognize that a 

18 f i n a l decision w i l l be made by the Department of the 

19 I n t e r i o r . 

20 And i n that regard, we request copies of the 

21 e x h i b i t s and hearing tr a n s c r i p t s that are produced out of 

22 t h i s proceeding today. And that information should be 

23 forwarded to Mr. Hoffman, and we can provide you with that 

24 address and the location of his o f f i c e as necessary. 

25 Thank you, that's a l l we have to say at t h i s 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



11_ 

1 time. 

2 MR. CARROLL: So Mr. Vaughn, you have no 

3 o b j e c t i o n t o us going forward w i t h the hearing? 

4 MR. VAUGHN: No, we have no o b j e c t i o n . We have 

5 our BLM decision-makers here who, as necessary, would l i k e 

6 t o supplement the record w i t h any questions they may have, 

7 but they can d i r e c t through me i f t h a t ' s how you p r e f e r t o 

8 proceed on any of t h i s t e c h n i c a l i n f o r m a t i o n t h a t ' s here 

9 today. But they're very w i l l i n g t o hear any a d d i t i o n a l 

10 i n f o r m a t i o n from Meridian i n the next s h o r t time t h a t we 

11 have t o make t h i s f i n a l d e c i s i o n . 

12 (Off the record) 

13 MR. CARROLL: Mr. Vaughn, we'd l i k e you t o 

14 address the po s s i b l e c o n f l i c t between OCD's mandate of 

15 p r e v e n t i o n of waste and p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s 

16 versus what you may consider the Department of the 

17 I n t e r i o r ' s i n t e r e s t i n p r o t e c t i n g , I guess, I n d i a n o i l and 

18 gas reserves. 

19 MR. VAUGHN: Well, i n the f i r s t place, I don't — 

20 I t ' s a l l h y p o t h e t i c a l , because we don't know i f t h e r e would 

21 be such a c o n f l i c t i n t h i s case or any other. 

22 A l l our p o s i t i o n i s , i s t h a t we need t o make a 

2 3 f i n a l d e termination based on the f i n d i n g s and 

24 recommendations and decisions of t h i s hearing, p l u s the 

25 a d d i t i o n a l considerations we need t o make w i t h the i n p u t of 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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t h e Ute Mountain Ute Tri b e . 

A l l I'm saying i s t h a t i t ' s s p e c u l a t i v e . I don't 

know how i t would be resolved. We may stand on our f e d e r a l 

r i g h t s , and you can stand on your s t a t e r i g h t s and see how 

t h a t works out i n the long run. 

But I don't t h i n k i t ' s necessary t o speculate on 

a c o n f l i c t when we do not have one as of y e t . 

MR. CARROLL: So you have no thoughts on what 

would happen i f our de c i s i o n i s based upon pr e v e n t i o n of 

waste, p r o t e c t i o n of c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s , and the Ute 

Mountain T r i b e disagreed w i t h t h a t d e c i s i o n , saying i t ' s i n 

the best i n t e r e s t s of the Tribe t o f i n d d i f f e r e n t l y ? 

MR. VAUGHN: Well once again, i t ' s based on pure 

s p e c u l a t i o n , but the f e d e r a l government i n t e r e s t i s also t o 

avoid waste. As t r u s t e e , we have t o avoid waste of the 

resource of the In d i a n t r i b e . 

The views of the Tribe are t o be considered. 

They're not the f i n a l determination here, j u s t as we 

be l i e v e t h i s board i s not the f i n a l d e t e r m i n a t i o n . The 

Department as t r u s t e e has t o make t h a t r e s p o n s i b i l i t y . 

And the reason why, the importance of why we're 

here and why I c i t e d those cases, because those cases 

c l e a r l y p o i n t out t h a t the US Department of the I n t e r i o r i s 

l i a b l e t o the t r i b e s i n breach of t r u s t i f they f a i l t o 

make an appropriate d e c i s i o n . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 An appropriate d e c i s i o n i s not n e c e s s a r i l y a 

2 d e c i s i o n t h a t ' s r i g h t or wrong; i t ' s an app r o p r i a t e 

3 d e c i s i o n t h a t takes i n t o c o n s i d e r a t i o n a l l the a p p r o p r i a t e 

4 c o n s i d e r a t i o n s . We're loo k i n g a t an a r b i t r a r y and 

5 c a p r i c i o u s standard. 

6 So I'm sure there could be a l o t of f a c t u a l 

7 disputes and argument as t o what c o n s t i t u t e s waste and what 

8 doesn't, what's the best evidence and what's not, and a l l 

9 those kinds of t h i n g s . But the important t h i n g f o r the 

10 Department i s t h a t we're f u l l y informed t o make a 

11 reasonable and r a t i o n a l d e c i s i o n . 

12 And we're not a n t i c i p a t i n g c o n f l i c t s . We want t o 

13 get along w i t h both the State and the T r i b e , and t h a t ' s the 

14 reason why we're here today, t o cooperate i n t h i s 

15 proceeding. 

16 MR. CARROLL: Okay, Mr. Vaughn, I ' l l c a l l the 

17 o f f i c e and have somebody run over here w i t h the l e t t e r we 

18 responded t o Mr. Strunk. 

19 MR. VAUGHN: We'd appreciate t h a t , t h a t ' s great. 

20 MR. CARROLL: I wish I would have remembered i t . 

21 MR. KELLAHIN: We have t h a t here. 

22 MR. CARROLL: Oh, you have a copy of i t ? 

23 MR. KELLAHIN: Sure, you gave me one the other 

24 day. I s t h a t the one you're t a l k i n g about? 

25 MR. CARROLL: Yeah. 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , we have i t . 

MR. CARROLL: Do you have an extra copy? 

MR. KELLAHIN: Yes, s i r , we f u l l y intend t o show 

you a l l those l e t t e r s . 

MR. CARROLL: Okay. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Kellahin, do you have any 

kind of statement you'd l i k e t o make? 

MR. KELLAHIN: I didn't think you'd ever ask me, 

Mr. Examiner. I didn't think I'd ever be asked. 

I'm c e r t a i n l y not here to debate j u r i s d i c t i o n nor 

to concede any of the points or concerns that Mr. Vaughn 

has raised with you. I think we have an incredibly useful, 

very meaningful process that the O i l Conservation Division 

has i n place by which a l l these agencies can l i s t e n , learn 

and p a r t i c i p a t e i n the technical process by which they can 

make t h e i r own decisions. 

Our concern as an operator i s that the federal 

government w i l l stand on i t s federal j u r i s d i c t i o n , the 

Native American Indian w i l l stand on i t s t r i b a l 

j u r i s d i c t i o n , and the State of New Mexico w i l l be standing 

on i t s state j u r i s d i c t i o n , and we're a f r a i d they're a l l 

going to be standing on Meridian O i l , and we don't want you 

standing on our neck. 

And we think the way to accommodate tha t 

p o t e n t i a l concern without resolving a l l these j u r i s d i c t i o n 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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issues i s t o use t h i s very process. 

I t h i n k i t was best s t a t e d i n the l e t t e r t h a t was 

sent t o D i r e c t o r LeMay, dated October 2 0th, by David 

Strunk, who I understand i s the Deputy State D i r e c t o r , 

Bureau of Land Management, i n the Colorado State O f f i c e . 

We have these l e t t e r s a v a i l a b l e . You can read them i n 

d e t a i l . 

But l e t me simply paraphrase a couple of the 

a r t i c l e s out of — paragraphs out of the l e t t e r t h a t 

conveyed t o me my personal sense of how t h i s process 

c e r t a i n l y can work. 

And he begins by saying, For many years t h e r e has 

been a s p i r i t of cooperation, communication and t r u s t 

between the New Mexico O i l Conservation D i v i s i o n and the 

Colorado Bureau of Land Management i n the management of the 

Ute Mountain Ute t r i b a l lands and the State of New Mexico 

i n the development of our Nation's o i l and gas resources. 

Each agency's mission and s t a f f i n g l e v e l s have grown d u r i n g 

these years t o the p o i n t where we b e l i e v e i t i s important 

t o f o r m a l i z e our e x c e l l e n t working r e l a t i o n s h i p s , as w e l l 

as d e f i n e each agency's r o l e and r e s p o n s i b i l i t i e s . I t i s 

important t o provide the o i l and gas lessee and operator 

w i t h c o n s i s t e n t p o l i c y and procedures on the Ute Mountain 

Ute t r i b a l lands. 

I t goes on t o say t h a t the BLM would l i k e t o use 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
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1 t h e State Commission's hearing process so as not t o 

2 d u p l i c a t e the e f f o r t and costs of a separate hearing 

3 process t o accommodate the i n d u s t r y ' s f a m i l i a r i t y w i t h the 

4 e x i s t i n g process, and we would appreciate the NMOCD's in p u t 

5 t o achieve consistency across j u r i s d i c t i o n a l boundaries. 

6 I t says, This course of a c t i o n i s u s e f u l t o the 

7 BLM i n i t s review of o i l and gas development de c i s i o n s on 

8 t r i b a l lands, and i t provides a more e f f i c i e n t and lower-

9 cost o p t i o n than f o r m u l a t i n g and implementing a hearing 

10 process of our own, and i t i s also less confusing t o the 

11 o i l and gas i n d u s t r y . 

12 And t h a t ' s what we hope t o accomplish here, i s a 

13 forum where t h e r e i s t e c h n i c a l people i n v o l v e d , t e c h n i c a l 

14 decision-makers t h a t are here t o l i s t e n t o the 

15 p r e s e n t a t i o n , t o ask questions, and t o p a r t i c i p a t e i n a 

16 process t h a t develops a record t h a t ' s u s e f u l f o r a l l of us, 

17 and so t h a t we don't have t o go from j u r i s d i c t i o n t o 

18 j u r i s d i c t i o n w i t h i n d i v i d u a l p r e s e n t a t i o n s . The 

19 o p p o r t u n i t y f o r consistency and u n i f o r m i t y i s important t o 

20 us. 

21 We are p r i n c i p a l l y here today t o persuade t h i s 

22 agency t h a t i n order t o prevent waste and p r o t e c t 

23 c o r r e l a t i v e r i g h t s t here are some very fundamental and 

24 important changes t h a t must be made i n one of the pools 

25 t h a t you have managed f o r some 50 years w i t h the 
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acquiescence, consent and concurrence of the f e d e r a l and 

t r i b a l j u r i s d i c t i o n s , and so we're ready t o proceed on t h a t 

p o i n t . 

As a matter of i n f o r m a t i o n , we have not 

forecasted the p a r t i c i p a t i o n of a l l these people. We have 

brought 12 sets of our e x h i b i t s , and we w i l l hand them out 

t i l l we don't have any more, and i f there's someone t h a t 

wants some more, i f t h e y ' l l j u s t give me the name and 

m a i l i n g address, w e ' l l assure you t h a t you can a l l have 

copies of whatever we present. 

MR. CARROLL: One p r e l i m i n a r y matter here. I n 

the l e t t e r from Mr. Strunk i t sai d the BLM would issue an 

order w i t h i n 30 days a f t e r t h i s hearing, a f t e r r e c e i v i n g 

t h e Examiner's recommendation. 

That might be c u t t i n g the time p r e t t y s h o r t f o r 

g e t t i n g our Examiner's recommendation. Sometimes — We t r y 

t o get i t out 30 days a f t e r the t r a n s c r i p t i s received. 

MR. VAUGHN: Well, t h a t 3 0 days i s a f t e r your 

f i n a l a c t i o n i s completed; am I r i g h t ? 

MR. CARROLL: The l e t t e r s a i d a f t e r t he hearing. 

MR. VAUGHN: Well, the i n t e n t , I b e l i e v e , was 

t o — 

MR. CARROLL: T h i r t y days a f t e r t h i s d e c i s i o n . 

MR. VAUGHN: — t h i r t y days a f t e r your 

d e t e r m i n a t i o n i s made. 
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MR. CARROLL: Okay. Well, t h a t c l e a r s t h a t up. 

MR. VAUGHN: And so w e ' l l s t a t e t h a t on the 

record. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Well, there's a question i n 

my mind about — we u s u a l l y — I n a s i t u a t i o n l i k e t h i s , we 

w i l l u s u a l l y issue an order t h a t has our d e c i s i o n i n i t . 

I don't know i f we're going t o stay w i t h t h a t 

process and issue a formal d e c i s i o n or we're j u s t going t o 

make recommendations. I don't know what we're going t o do 

about t h a t y e t , but t h a t has t o be addressed sometime — 

MR. VAUGHN: I t does, and I'm glad t h a t we've got 

a dialogue going. I'm glad t h a t you responded f a v o r a b l y t o 

t h a t l e t t e r . I t would be best, of course, i f we had 

eve r y t h i n g f o r m a l l y put i n place already, but I t h i n k we're 

a l l i n agreement t h a t we can make t h i s work. And whatever 

you do i n your f i n a l a c t i o n i s — w i l l be respected by the 

Department and w i l l form the p r i n c i p a l basis of our 

de c i s i o n , because i t w i l l have the t e c h n i c a l f i n d i n g s and 

review. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, t h a t ' s something t h a t ' s 

going t o have t o be addressed i n t e r n a l l y w i t h i n our 

D i v i s i o n t o see how we're going t o handle i t . 

MR. VAUGHN: Okay. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Are we ready t o proceed a t 

th a t ? Mr. Kellahin? 
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MR. KELLAHIN: We are, Mr. Examiner. I have 

t h r e e witnesses t o be sworn. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: W i l l the witnesses please 

stand and be sworn in? 

(Thereupon, the witnesses were sworn.) 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, by way of 

i n t r o d u c t i o n , we have a s e r i e s of e x h i b i t s t h a t are 

organized i n a smaller handout e x h i b i t book. We've also 

chosen t o take key e x h i b i t s and t o make l a r g e r copies of 

those. 

I n a d d i t i o n , t here are la r g e copy displayed 

e x h i b i t s t h a t , i f reduced t o put i n a l i t t l e book, are no 

longer l e g i b l e or meaningful. 

So as we go through the p r e s e n t a t i o n e x h i b i t s , I 

want you t o know t h a t we have pre-numbered the ones i n the 

book. 

The l a r g e r ones have the i d e n t i f i c a t i o n f o r the 

e x h i b i t s but are unnumbered, and we may have t o present 

them t o you out of sequence i n order t h a t you see a l l the 

p a r t s . But t h a t ' s how we have organized the e x h i b i t s . 

We have d i s t r i b u t e d t o you copies of some of the 

l a r g e r ones already. I have e x t r a copies on the t a b l e , and 

as we discuss those e x h i b i t s I w i l l hand them out. That 

may be the most expedient way t o go about t h a t . 

F i r s t of a l l , l e t me c i r c u l a t e the smaller 
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booklets so t h a t a t l e a s t we have d i s t r i b u t e d those. 

Again, I apologize f o r not q u i t e having enough. 

I f we're s h o r t — 

MR. VAUGHN: We're f i n e . 

MR. KELLAHIN: — and you need e x t r a s , c a l l me 

and w e ' l l get you some. 

Mr. Examiner, my f i r s t witness t o present t o you 

i s Mr. Jim Hornbeck. He s p e l l s h i s l a s t name 

H-o-r-n-b-e-c-k. Mr. Hornbeck i s a petroleum g e o l o g i s t 

r e s i d i n g i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

JAMES M. HORNBECK. 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. For the record, s i r , would you please s t a t e your 

name and occupation? 

A. My name i s Jim Hornbeck, and I'm a petroleum 

g e o l o g i s t w i t h Meridian O i l i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. On p r i o r occasions, s i r , have you t e s t i f i e d 

before t h i s r e g u l a t o r y body as a q u a l i f i e d expert witness 

i n t he f i e l d of petroleum geology? 

A. Yes, I have. 

Q. Summarize f o r us, i f you w i l l , what has been your 

p a r t i c u l a r involvement on behalf of your company w i t h i n 
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1 your profession f o r t h i s p a r t i c u l a r case. 

2 A. I am the project geologist f o r the Barker Dome 

3 f i e l d project. 

4 Q. Are there other members of your project team 

5 besides yourself that worked on t h i s project? 

6 A. Yes, there are. 

7 Q. I d e n t i f y them f o r me, please. 

8 A. I have two i n the audience: Mr. Chip Lane, the 

9 reservoir engineer; and Mr. Dean Price, the project 

10 landman. 

11 Q. As a r e s u l t of that combined e f f o r t by you 

12 technical individuals, have you come up to some 

13 recommendations with regards to how to future manage the 

14 regulatory rules with regards t o production out of what i s 

15 now known as the Barker Creek-Paradox (Pennsylvanian) Gas 

16 Pool? 

17 A. Yes, we have. 

18 MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Hornbeck as an 

19 expert petroleum geologist. 

20 EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Hornbeck, f o r the benefit 

21 of the parties here, could you b r i e f l y go over your 

22 educational background? 

23 THE WITNESS: I have a bachelor of science degree 

24 i n geology from Long Island University. I have a master of 

25 science — 
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1 Q. (By Mr. Ke l l a h i n ) I n what year d i d you o b t a i n 

2 i t ? These are tough, Jim, I know. I'm so r r y . 

3 A. Going back a ways here. I b e l i e v e i t was 1973. 

4 And I have a master's of science from the U n i v e r s i t y of New 

5 York, State U n i v e r s i t y of New York, i n geology i n 197 6, and 

6 I have been working i n the petroleum i n d u s t r y f o r a v a r i e t y 

7 of companies since t h a t time, predominantly i n the San Juan 

8 Basin and Paradox Basin of southeastern Utah and 

9 northwestern New Mexico. 

10 EXAMINER CATANACH: Thank you, Mr. Hornbeck. 

11 The witness i s considered q u a l i f i e d . 

12 Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) I t h i n k i t may be u s e f u l , Mr. 

13 Hornbeck, i f w e ' l l go t o the small e x h i b i t book. Help me 

14 f i n d the l o c a t o r map t h a t shows us what p a r t of the San 

15 Juan Basin t h a t you're focusing our a t t e n t i o n t o . I s the r e 

16 such a displ a y ? 

17 A. Yes, there i s . E x h i b i t 2 i s — 

18 Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s t u r n t o E x h i b i t Tab 2 and t u r n 

19 behind t h a t t a b , and there's a d i s p l a y . I s t h a t what 

20 you're t a l k i n g about? 

21 A. Yes, I am. 

22 Q. A l l r i g h t . What's the source of t h i s document? 

23 A. This i s a s t r u c t u r a l map of the northwestern New 

24 Mexico San Juan Basin and southern Colorado. I t i s a 

25 p r o f e s s i o n a l l y prepared s t r u c t u r e map from a t e c h n i c a l 
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1 j o u r n a l , and i t i s a structure map on the base of the 

2 Greenhorn, which i s a very good s t r u c t u r a l datum f o r 

3 mapping i n the northwestern New Mexico area. 

4 And from that map i t ' s possible to note — to see 

5 th a t the Barker Creek Dome f i e l d i s located along the 

6 Colorado-New Mexico border. I t i s about 3 0 miles northwest 

7 of Farmington, New Mexico and i s located outside the proper 

8 San Juan — s t r u c t u r a l San Juan Basin, and i s located i n an 

9 area referred to as the Four Corners Platform. 

10 Q. I s t h i s a geologic map that's generally u t i l i z e d 

11 and r e l i e d upon by geologic experts w i t h i n t h i s p a r t i c u l a r 

12 area and portion of Colorado and New Mexico? 

13 A. Yes, i t i s . 

14 Q. Okay. What's the point? 

15 A. The point i s to locate f o r the audience and the 

16 Examiner where Barker Creek Dome f i e l d i s and i t s p o s i t i o n 

17 with r e l a t i o n s h i p to the State of — the northwestern area 

18 of New Mexico. 

19 Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . Do you have another locator map 

20 t h a t w i l l give us the current horizontal boundaries of the 

21 e x i s t i n g pool and show the location of wells t h a t currently 

22 produce out of that pool? 

23 A. We do, i t ' s a larger wall e x h i b i t . 

24 Q. A l l r i g h t , and you characterized i t with the type 

25 log? 
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A. That's correct. 

Q. Hang on, don't t a l k . 

What's our l a s t e x h i b i t number? 

A. Eight. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , t h i s w i l l be Number 9. 

Did you get one of these already? 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I believe they already have 

been d i s t r i b u t e d up there. 

Q. (By Mr. Kellahin) A l l r i g h t . For purposes of 

the record, Mr. Hornbeck, I'm taking what you've i d e n t i f i e d 

as a structure map on top of the Barker Creek. 

A. Yes. 

Q. I t ' s a large-scale display, and I'm going t o mark 

t h a t as Meridian Exhibit 9. 

A l l r i g h t . Before we discuss the technical 

d e t a i l s , help us understand how you've color-coded the 

display. 

A. This display i s an inte n t to vis u a l i z e our 

proposed pool area w i t h i n the State of New Mexico f o r the 

Barker Creek pools. 

There i s a structure map drawn on the top of the 

Barker Creek, which i s a — one of the pay i n t e r v a l s w i t h i n 

the Barker Creek producing f i e l d , and on i t are located a l l 

e x i s t i n g Pennsylvanian tests that have been d r i l l e d from 

the discovery of the pool back i n 1945 to the present time. 
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Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t me stop you there. The green l i n e 

represents your proposed boundary fo r a l l the pools? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. This proposed boundary i s not consistent with the 

current pool boundary fo r the Barker Creek-Paradox 

(Pennsylvanian) Pool? 

A. That i s correct. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look to see what the current 

boundary i s f o r the pool. I f y o u ' l l look behind Exhibit 

Tab Number 3 i n the l i t t l e book, that display has got some 

information on i t other than what I'm describing f o r you, 

but i s there a color code on Exhibit 3 that w i l l show the 

Examiner what the current boundary i s f o r the e x i s t i n g 

pool? 

A. Yes, i f you look down i n the lower left-hand 

corner of the e x h i b i t , there i s a legend which shows the 

current pool boundary as a dotted and dashed o u t l i n e , and 

then the proposed pool boundary d i r e c t l y underneath i t i n 

the legend i s a s o l i d red l i n e , and the two are compared on 

th a t map. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s stay on t h i s t o pic. 

Are you recommending to the Examiner that i f he 

agrees t o subdivide the e x i s t i n g pool, that the o r i g i n a l 

pool, as contracted, plus the new pools created out of the 

subdivision, should have a boundary f o r pool purposes that 
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i s concomitant w i t h the green l i n e shown on E x h i b i t 9? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t . The green l i n e on t h a t l a r g e r 

scale map and the proposed pool boundary i n the smaller 

e x h i b i t are the same. 

Q. Okay, l e t ' s t a l k about why. G e o l o g i c a l l y , i s 

t h e r e anything on E x h i b i t 9 t h a t causes you t o reach a 

geologic conclusion about the appropriate h o r i z o n t a l 

boundaries, i f you w i l l , by which t o e s t a b l i s h r u l e s f o r 

a l l these pools? 

A. Yes, we believe there are. 

The s t r u c t u r a l i n t e r p r e t a t i o n of t h a t map leads 

t o a double — an a n t i c l i n a l closure t h a t was o r i g i n a l l y 

developed i n the e a r l y 1940s and 1950s, t e s t i n g the 

s t r u c t u r a l area under closure on approximately e i g h t or t e n 

m i l e s , square miles, of closure, and the p r o d u c t i v e zones 

are developed i n a r e l a t i o n s h i p s t r u c t u r a l l y w i t h the area 

under c l o s u r e . 

And we f e e l t h a t t h a t area t h a t i s being proposed 

f o r the pool area r i g h t now w i l l a l l ow us t o e f f e c t i v e l y 

d e l i n e a t e and explore along the closure f o r a d d i t i o n a l o i l 

and gas reserves. 

Q. I s t h e r e a l a b e l t h a t you g e o l o g i s t s put on t h i s 

k i n d of creature? What do you c a l l t h i s t h i n g ? 

A. I t would be a doubly plunging a n t i c l i n e or a 

s t r u c t u r a l dome. 
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1 Q. Easy f o r you t o say. 

2 A. Dome. 

3 Q. Dome. A l l r i g h t . So on the New Mexico side of 

4 t h i s f e a t u r e , you're proposing t h a t a l l these pool r u l e s 

5 cover the surface acreage t h a t you've i d e n t i f i e d on t h i s 

6 di s p l a y ? 

7 A. That i s our recommendation, yes, s i r . 

8 Q. A l l r i g h t . On the Colorado side of t h i s , j u s t 

9 f o r p o i n t of i n f o r m a t i o n , are there r u l e s t h a t deal w i t h 

10 any o f these various i n t e r v a l s i n the Pennsylvanian? 

11 A. Yes, there are. 

12 Q. Do you know from memory what they were doing i n 

13 Colorado about spacing? 

14 A. I t i s 640-acre spacing — 

15 Q. A l l r i g h t . 

16 A. — f o r a l l those zones. 

17 Q. Okay. I s i t ap p r o p r i a t e , do you t h i n k as a 

18 g e o l o g i s t , t h a t the boundaries should be the same f o r a l l 

19 these pools i f the D i v i s i o n agrees t o subdivide the 

20 o r i g i n a l pool? 

21 A. Based on t h e i r r e l a t i o n s h i p t o the s t r u c t u r a l 

22 c l o s u r e on the dome, I t h i n k i t ' s a reasonable 

23 i n t e r p r e t a t i o n . 

24 Q. W i l l t h a t provide u n i f o r m i t y and consistency t o 

25 these v a r i o u s i n t e r v a l s so t h a t t h e y ' l l have the same set 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



28_ 

of rules, regardless of where the w e l l may be w i t h i n the 

s t r u c t u r a l feature? 

A. Yes. 

Q. We're going to come back to t h i s display i n a 

minute, but l e t ' s now look at the v e r t i c a l p i c t u r e . 

Do you have a display that we can go to and help 

the Examiner and the audience see what the opportunities 

are f o r subdividing the Pennsylvanian and then looking at 

what your recommendations are? 

A. I would l i k e to have everyone t u r n to the e x h i b i t 

behind Tab Exhibit 6. 

Q. Okay. 

A. This i s a str a t i g r a p h i c cross-section r e l a t i n g 

the older e x i s t i n g 1950s vintage e l e c t r i c a l w i r e l i n e log 

c o n t r o l , which i s the majority of the well log information 

i n the New Mexico portion of the f i e l d . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s take a l i t t l e detour, Mr. 

Hornbeck. 

A. Okay. 

Q. When you look at the vintage of the log data i n 

the e x i s t i n g pool, what kind of vintage are we t a l k i n g 

about? 

A. Well, f o r the most part, the majority of the data 

i s early 19- — w e l l , middle to l a t e 1940s and early 1950s. 

You have old SP and r e s i s t i v i t y logs, and i f we're lucky a 
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1 gamma-ray. 

2 Q. So what's the problem? 

3 A. We don't r e a l l y have a good understanding of the 

4 thickness and development of porosity w i t h i n the p a r t i c u l a r 

5 zones, unless we have a new, modern set of w i r e l i n e logs. 

6 Q. Log q u a l i t y , then, i s not as sophisticated as i t 

7 i s now, and therefore you can't use those old logs to the 

8 degree tha t you can use new logs f o r a n a l y t i c a l purposes? 

9 A. That i s correct. 

10 Q. What did you do? 

11 A. We u t i l i z e d the available data from the o r i g i n a l 

12 d r i l l i n g f i l e s t o t r y and understand the nature and 

13 thickness of pays w i t h i n the f i e l d , looking at cuttings 

14 descriptions, any available core descriptions, which were 

15 very l i m i t e d . There's one core — or maybe perhaps two 

16 cores i n New Mexico when the f i e l d was developed. 

17 Q. Any modern geologic data that you could u t i l i z e ? 

18 A. We u t i l i z e d some cased-hole modern gamma-rays 

19 when we re-entered inactive wells, and that i s about the 

20 sum of the data we had to c a l l on f o r i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

21 purposes. 

22 Q. So then what did you do? 

23 A. Well, we correlated the i n t e r v a l s as best we 

24 could with the data we have, and we're i n t e g r a t i n g the 

25 modern w e l l control as we acquire i t . 
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1 Q. Do you have a point of modern w e l l control that 

2 exists by which to aid you i n making t h i s correlation? 

3 A. Yes, we do, and — 

4 Q. And where i s that well? 

5 A. The w e l l we have used for the c o r r e l a t i o n 

6 purposes i s a w e l l j u s t north of the New Mexico border, and 

7 I believe i t ' s i n Section 22 of La Plata County, i n 32 

8 North, 13 1/2 West. 

9 Q. A l l r i g h t . And i f we're looking at Exhibit 6, i f 

10 we look at the log on the right-hand side of Exhibit 6, 

11 that's i t ? 

12 A. That's correct. 

13 Q. Okay. Let's use that log f o r a moment. 

14 A. Okay. 

15 Q. Take that log f o r me and geologically subdivide 

16 the Pennsylvanian i n t o the separate sources of common 

17 supply w i t h i n the Pennsylvanian. 

18 A. What we found with modern w i r e l i n e logs — i n 

19 p a r t i c u l a r , porosity, neutron porosity and density w i r e l i n e 

20 log c o n t r o l — i s that there are a series of i n t e r v a l s with 

21 varying limestone/dolomite make-ups i n which some of the 

22 zones are more porous and permeable and are interpreted as 

23 gas-productive, separated v e r t i c a l l y by very t h i c k 

24 i n t e r v a l s of impermeable shales, anhydrites and, i n some 

25 cases, t i g h t limestones. 
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1 Q. Before we go through that detailed discussion, 

2 t e l l us where the pr i m a r i l y producing i n t e r v a l has been 

3 among the Pennsylvanian i n t e r v a l s f o r a l l the h i s t o r i c 

4 production out of the pool. 

5 A. O r i g i n a l l y when the structure was tested and gas 

6 was found productive w i t h i n the Pennsylvanian Paradox 

7 formation, a l l wells on the structure were d r i l l e d t o t e s t 

8 and were completed i n what i s called the Lower Barker 

9 Creek. 

10 Q. How i s that color-coded on your Exhibit 6? 

11 A. I t i s a salmon-pink color, and i t ' s also noted on 

12 the side by the stratigraphic nomenclature. And tha t i s 

13 the zone i n the f i e l d that has to date produced the 

14 majority of gas, and i t ' s r i g h t now at about 230 b i l l i o n 

15 cubic feet of gas, since production was i n i t i a t e d back i n 

16 1945. 

17 Q. This regulatory body, under an order from the O i l 

18 Conservation Commission dated November 2 l s t , 1950, Order 

19 Number R-46, established some pool rules f o r t h i s e n t i r e 

20 Pennsylvanian series of reservoirs, did i t not? 

21 A. That i s correct. 

22 Q. What were the rules? 

23 A. The rules were, a well could be d r i l l e d on 640-

24 acre spacing, one well on 640-acre spacing, completed i n a 

25 Paradox-defined pool, which included everything from — on 
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1 t h i s c r o s s - s e c t i o n , from the top of the Ismay t o the bottom 

2 of the A l k a l i Gulch. 

3 Q. Did i t provide f o r w e l l l o c a t i o n s w i t h i n a 

4 s e c t i o n or spacing u n i t ? 

5 A. Yes, i t did. 

6 Q. And what were those loc a t i o n s ? 

7 A. There's an e x h i b i t I ' l l need t o r e f e r t o , t o make 

8 sure I get t h i s c o r r e c t , and I hope i t ' s i n here. 

9 Q. I f i t ' s not, I'm h o l d i n g i t . 

10 A. Would you help me out, please — 

11 Q. Sure. 

12 A. — and t e l l me what t h a t spacing is? 

13 Q. May I approach the witness, Mr. Examiner? 

14 A. Thank you. I'm going t o read from the o r i g i n a l 

15 gas pool determination: For those pools appearing t o 

16 r e q u i r e 640-acre spacing i n the Pennsylvanian f o r m a t i o n , 

17 orthodox l o c a t i o n s should be r e q u i r e d t o be no c l o s e r than 

18 330 f e e t t o the center and 1650 f e e t from the boundary of 

19 each s e c t i o n i n the Barker Creek Paradox (Pennsylvanian) 

20 Pool. 

21 Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look a t your E x h i b i t 4 now. 

22 A. Okay. 

23 Q. What does t h a t show you? 

24 A. There are a s e r i e s of — There are f o u r e x h i b i t s 

25 i n c l u d e d i n t h e r e . 
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1 Q. Find me the one that shows me the w e l l spacing 

2 pattern under the current rules i f I'm stuck with 640 gas 

3 spacing and these footage setbacks. 

4 A. I t i s — I believe i t ' s the f i r s t of the four 

5 behind Tab Number 4, Exhibit Number 4. 

6 Q. A l l r i g h t , that's what we have f o r the current 

7 rules. That's well locations plus the proration spacing 

8 u n i t dedication of 640? 

9 A. Right. 

10 Q. A l l right? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. How long did those rules stay i n place? 

13 A. They are s t i l l i n place, t o t h i s day. 

14 Q. So what's wrong with them? 

15 A. They are an encumbrance, based on some ce r t a i n 

16 physical aspects of the topography of the area where the 

17 f i e l d i s located and the very special considerations f o r 

18 archeological s i t e s w i t h i n the area. I t has become very 

19 d i f f i c u l t f o r Meridian O i l to space wells w i t h i n t h i s 

20 e x i s t i n g spacing resolution that we have r i g h t now. 

21 Q. The well-location problems are s i g n i f i c a n t 

22 because the r e s t r i c t i o n s on locations are too severe f o r 

23 the topography and the archeological l i m i t a t i o n s ? 

24 A. Well, we f e e l i t would benefit a l l p a r t i e s i f we 

25 would have a l i t t l e b i t more f l e x i b i l i t y i n t r y i n g t o stake 
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new w e l l l o c a t i o n s . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , we're going t o come back t o t h a t 

l a t e r . 

When you look a t 640 gas spacing, what's wrong 

w i t h t h a t ? 

A. Nothing, i f — depending on what r e s e r v o i r you're 

t a l k i n g about. 

Q. Well, shouldn't we keep the e n t i r e Pennsylvanian 

as one pool? 

A. No, based on the work t h a t we have done, l o o k i n g 

a t t he producing horizons i n the Barker Dome f i e l d , we've 

found t h a t t h e r e are v a r i a t i o n s i n r e s e r v o i r q u a l i t y , 

depending on which zone we are lo o k i n g a t e v a l u a t i n g , which 

would not be e f f e c t i v e l y — the gas would not be 

e f f e c t i v e l y drained, based on a blanket 640-acre spacing 

r e g u l a t i o n . 

Q. Well, I don't understand. Why can't you take 

these wellbores depleted out of a lower zone and, once 

depleted, move up t o another p o r t i o n of these i n t e r v a l s i n 

the same gross pool? 

A. Well, based on the comment I made before about 

the modern w i r e l i n e l o g on the Ute 16, we've found t h a t 

t h e r e are v e r t i c a l p e r m e a b i l i t y b a r r i e r s t o the other 

d i s t i n c t zones and the p o r o s i t y developed w i t h i n them, i n 

t h a t they are s t i l l a t higher normal pressures, v i r g i n 
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pressures, which are undepleted, and the e x i s t i n g pressure 

i n the main producing horizon, the Lower Barker Creek, has 

been depleted down t o approximately h a l f of i t s o r i g i n a l 

pressure. 

So we're l o o k i n g a t t r y i n g t o commingle new zones 

a t about 3400 pounds pressure w i t h o l d zones t h a t have been 

completed down t o approximately 1500 pounds of pressure. 

Q. What's the approximate date of the l a s t v e r t i c a l 

w e l l t o be d r i l l e d i n t h i s pool? 

A. I n the pool i t s e l f we have been a c t i v e l y 

developing i n the past year, and we have j u s t completed a 

program i n which we probably — I ' d say the middle of 

September was our l a s t d r i l l e d w e l l i n the p o o l . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Before you s t a r t e d t h a t program, how 

long a p e r i o d had elapsed between s t a r t i n g t h a t program and 

the l a s t v e r t i c a l w e l l d r i l l e d ? 

A. I f what you're asking me i s how long before we 

s t a r t e d our d e l i n e a t i o n and a d d i t i o n a l d r i l l i n g t o t r y and 

i d e n t i f y a d d i t i o n a l remaining reserves, i t was probably on 

the course of between 35 and 40 years. 

Q. Was t h e r e anything about these e x i s t i n g r u l e s 

t h a t was an impediment t o f u r t h e r e x p l o r a t i o n and 

development of t h i s resource? 

A. I t was an impediment t o some of our a d d i t i o n a l 

e v a l u a t i o n of these shallower zones. 
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1 Q. Let's go back t o the s u b d i v i s i o n s . When we look 

2 a t E x h i b i t 6, s t a y i n g w i t h the Ute 16 l o g — and you can 

3 e i t h e r s t a r t a t the bottom or s t a r t a t the t o p , but l e t ' s 

4 s t a r t and have you g e o l o g i c a l l y show me your conclusion and 

5 the reasons f o r i d e n t i f y i n g however many separate sources 

6 of supply as you've concluded are contained w i t h i n the 

7 c u r r e n t pool l i m i t s . 

8 A. We b e l i e v e , based on the work w i t h the o l d e r 

9 geologic i n f o r m a t i o n we had t o work w i t h o r i g i n a l l y and the 

10 modern w i r e l i n e logs t o help us support t h a t i n t e r p r e t a t i o n 

11 w i t h s t r a t i g r a p h i c c o r r e l a t i o n s , t h a t we have found an 

12 Ismay zone which i s separate from the Lower Barker Creek 

13 p r o d u c t i v e i n t e r v a l , a Desert Creek i n t e r v a l which holds 

14 promise w i t h the p o r o s i t y developed i n i t , an Upper Barker 

15 Creek, and an A l k a l i Gulch i n t e r v a l t h a t a l l have separate 

16 d i f f e r e n t sources of supply of gas across the s t r u c t u r e as 

17 mapped on the w a l l e x h i b i t , which i s E x h i b i t Number 9. 

18 Q. A l l r i g h t . Did you get me t o the bottom? 

19 A. Yes, I d i d . 

20 Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's s t a r t w i t h the top p o o l . 

21 A. A l l r i g h t . 

22 Q. When you look a t the data a v a i l a b l e — We've got 

23 the X-X' cros s - s e c t i o n ; I t h i n k t h a t ' s a u s e f u l d i s p l a y t o 

24 go t o . How i s t h a t i d e n t i f i e d f o r us i n the book? 

25 A. There i s a l o c a t o r map f o r s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-
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1 section X-X1, which i s Exhibit 5. 

2 Q. Did you reduce the cross-section to a small 

3 display i n the book? 

4 A. No, I did not. 

5 Q. A l l r i g h t . Let me hand out the cross-sections, 

6 then. 

7 A. That w i l l be Exhibit 10. 

8 Q. Ten, cross-section, 10. We're going to work our 

9 way t o Exhibit 10? 

10 A. Yes, we are. 

11 Q. But l e t ' s f i n i s h with Exhibit 6 so we don't lose 

12 anybody. 

13 A. Okay. 

14 Q. Back to Exhibit 6, you've taken the Ute 16 log, 

15 which i s a modern, high-quality log — 

16 A. That's r i g h t . 

17 Q. — you've analyzed i t , and you have found your 

18 separate reservoirs, i f you w i l l . 

19 A. Yes, s i r . 

20 Q. What then did you do to integrate i t back i n t o 

21 the e x i s t i n g pool i n New Mexico? 

22 A. What I attempted to do, based on the e x i s t i n g 

23 older w i r e l i n e logs and c u t t i n g descriptions and core data 

24 and whatever we could f i n d t o u t i l i z e , was, we t r i e d t o 

25 correlate the modern wirel i n e log zones back i n t o the older 
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1 e l e c t r i c a l log responses, as shown i n the Ute 6, and t h a t 

2 r e l a t i o n s h i p between the Ute 16 and the Ute 6 i s indicated 

3 or pointed out on Exhibit 9 on the w a l l , the structure map. 

4 This shows the s p a t i a l relationship between the 

5 type log, the Ute 6 log, which we're going to propose our 

6 pools on, and then the red l i n e t y i n g i t to the Ute 6, 

7 along the northwest flank of the structure, down i n the 

8 proposed pool area i n New Mexico. 

9 And what i t does i s , i t allows us, along with the 

10 other w a l l e x h i b i t , cross-section — s t r a t i g r a p h i c cross-

11 section X-X', i s to t i e a l l the w i r e l i n e log control or 

12 most of the w i r e l i n e log control w i t h i n the proposed pool 

13 area and delineate the zones across the feature i n New 

14 Mexico and show the l a t e r a l c o n tinuity of those zones. 

15 And a l l I wanted to also point out on Exhibit 6 

16 before we leave i t i s that based on the neutron density 

17 responses on the Ute 16 log, i t i s possible t o delineate 

18 the t i g h t e r permeability barriers to v e r t i c a l migration of 

19 gas between the zones. 

20 Q. Well, l e t ' s do t h a t . 

21 A. A l l r i g h t , that's f i n e . 

22 Q. Start at the top and show me these ba r r i e r s to 

23 v e r t i c a l flow that separate these out i n t o separate 

24 reservoirs. 

25 A. Okay, s t a r t i n g at the top of the Ute 16 i n the 
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Ismay, there's a t i g h t and impermeable shale section of 

approximately 50 feet, at which — the base of i t i s the 

base of the interpreted Ismay st r a t i g r a p h i c i n t e r v a l . 

I n the Desert Creek we have an i n t e r v a l t h a t i s 

fo r the most part t i g h t and impermeable, and i t has a 

thickness of over — r i g h t at 100 feet, and that i s mostly 

t i g h t dolomites and some shales. 

The Akah i n t e r v a l , which i s not colored here, i s 

a series of evaporites, including anhydrite, nonporous 

dolomite and shales, and i t separates the Desert Creek from 

the Barker Creek, which we have broken out from 

correlations across the f i e l d between upper and lower. 

Within the Upper Barker Creek, there are various 

t i g h t limestones and dolomites with very few stringers of 

porosity interspersed w i t h i n i t . 

The high-porosity main producer i n the f i e l d , the 

Lower Barker Creek, i s i n pink on the Ute 16 w i r e l i n e log, 

and you can see there are some porosity responses with 

deflections t o the l e f t , i n d i c a t i n g porosity i n about 40 

foot of i n t e r v a l . But then there's about 3 0 or 40 feet of 

t i g h t limestone and dolomite underlying i t from the A l k a l i 

Gulch. 

And then f i n a l l y i n the A l k a l i Gulch, there's a 

series of t i g h t and impermeable limestones and dolomite 

separating out the one p a r t i c u l a r zone tha t has been 
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perforated and i s productive, and i t i s down at about 83 60 

fee t . 

And then we're back i n t o t i g h t , nonporous 

impermeable shales and dolomites. 

Q. Okay. 

A. And we have a larger scale log which might also 

lend i t s e l f t o — 

Q. Yeah, we can come to that i n a second. 

A l l r i g h t , now make the c o r r e l a t i o n from the Ute 

16 log t o the Ute 6. 

A. Okay, i n t r y i n g to correlate and t i e i n the 

modern w i r e l i n e log control to the older e x i s t i n g 

e l e c t r i c a l logs, you can correlate i n as we have done, or I 

have done on t h i s type — on t h i s cross-section. 

And that gives you a t i e to a l l the old, e x i s t i n g 

e l e c t r i c a l w i r e l i n e control i n the New Mexico proposed 

pool. And that locator — Or that allows you to correlate 

across the e n t i r e proposed pool area with the e x i s t i n g well 

c o n t r o l , as i s shown i n Exhibit 5, i n which we have shown 

the o u t l i n e of the proposed pool area, and then the cross-

section as i t i s — cross-section X-X1 on the w a l l here, 

Exhibit 10, which l i n k s a l l the st r a t i g r a p h i c i n t e r v a l s 

across the proposed pool area. 

And those are the wir e l i n e logs and the zones as 

mapped based on the existing control that we have. 
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Q. Are you s a t i s f i e d that you have successfully and 

accurately used t h i s method and properly correlated a l l the 

logs w i t h i n the e x i s t i n g pool? 

A. I f e e l we have done the best job we can, yes, 

s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Do you believe that there i s 

s u f f i c i e n t q u a l i t y of cor r e l a t i o n that you can reach 

geologic conclusions about the con t i n u i t y or lack of 

co n t i n u i t y of those in d i v i d u a l reservoirs, as they are 

i d e n t i f i e d throughout the pool? 

A. Based on the wirel i n e c o n t r o l , one we l l per mile, 

we f e e l confident that that i s the s t r a t i g r a p h i c 

r e l a t i o n s h i p across that portion of the structure. 

Q. Let's go now to Exhibit 10, which i s the X-X' 

cross-section. You said Exhibit 5 i s the locator index to 

show the Examiner that you've attempted t o connect 

v i r t u a l l y a l l of the wells i n some fashion so tha t he would 

have them displayed before him. 

A. Yeah, strat i g r a p h i c cross-section X-X' i s merely 

an attempt t o show the correlations from we l l t o wel l i n a 

southwest-northeasterly d i r e c t i o n along the axis of the 

structure and t i e s the majority of the wells across the New 

Mexico portion of the f i e l d . 

And i t shows that there are some mappable units 

t h a t can be correlated and interpreted t o show the zones 
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across the New Mexico portion of the f i e l d . 

Q. One of the concerns the Examiner i s going to have 

i s t h a t i n exercising his conservation obligations, he 

wants t o deal with pools that can be i d e n t i f i e d 

h o r i z o n t a l l y t o be continuous over a cert a i n defined area. 

When we look at your proposed pool area, can you 

reach any geologic conclusions about the c o n t i n u i t y of each 

and every one of these zones? 

A. Yes, they are d e f i n i t e l y definable across the 

proposed pool area. As we get more modern w i r e l i n e control 

i n the area, i t w i l l become easier t o i d e n t i f y them and 

make sure they are t r u l y l a t e r a l l y continuous as we have 

interpreted from the ex i s t i n g well c o n t r o l . 

And I think that we are close to as accurate as 

we can be with the corr e l a t i o n using the sample 

descriptions, e x i s t i n g core data and e x i s t i n g w i r e l i n e 

logs. 

Q. Let me put i t to you t h i s way: Are you aware of 

any geologic data that i s contrary t o and inconsistent with 

the conclusions you've reached? 

A. I am not. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . You've i d e n t i f i e d geologically s i x 

separate i d e n t i f i a b l e i n t e r v a l s , each separated one from 

another. 

A. (Nods) 
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1 Q. A l l right? 

2 A. Yes, s i r . 

3 Q. Show us what you have concluded t o be an 

4 appropriate organization of those i n t e r v a l s i n t o separate 

5 pools. 

6 A. A l l r i g h t . 

7 Q. You've got more inte r v a l s than you have pools? 

8 A. That i s correct. 

9 Q. Show us what you did and how you got tha t 

10 conclusion. 

11 A. I n order t o do that, i t would be necessary t o go 

12 t o the proposed pool revision rules and the type log tha t 

13 i s hanging on the wall here, which I believe we' l l c a l l 

14 Exhibit 11. 

15 Q. Let's do that. 

16 A. Okay. 

17 Q. A l l r i g h t , we've got the l i t t l e Exhibit 6 as a 

18 reference. We're now looking at the big display, Exhibit 

19 11, which i s your type log. 

20 Take us through your analysis of how you're 

21 proposing t o subdivide the ex i s t i n g pool i n t o what w i l l now 

22 be four pools, the contraction of the o r i g i n a l one and the 

23 creation of three more, f o r a t o t a l of four. 

24 A. What we have attempted to do — and I ' l l be 

25 speaking from the Exhibits 11, which i s a larger-scale type 
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l o g of the Ute 16 w i t h modern w i r e l i n e c o n t r o l — What we 

have t r i e d t o do i s make the most l o g i c a l d i v i s i o n of 

p r o d u c t i v e i n t e r v a l s w i t h i n the f i e l d t o help us d e l i n e a t e 

a d d i t i o n a l o p p o r t u n i t i e s and produce e x i s t i n g gas t h a t i s 

now not developed. 

And what we propose t o do i n t h i s f i e l d a t the 

present time i s t o v e r t i c a l l y c o n t r a c t the v e r t i c a l l i m i t 

of the e x i s t i n g pool, which a t the present time includes 

a l l zones w i t h i n the Paradox formation, t o v e r t i c a l l y 

c o n t r a c t t h a t down, 640-acre spacing, t o i n c l u d e both the 

Lower Barker Creek, which i s already developed w i t h i n the 

s t r u c t u r a l — along the s t r u c t u r e of the f i e l d , and include 

i t w i t h the A l k a l i Gulch pay zone and c a l l t h a t , now, the 

r e v i s e d v e r t i c a l l i m i t of the Barker Creek Paradox Pool, 

and we'd l i k e t o maintain t h a t on 640-acre spacing. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let me stop you a t t h a t p o i n t and ask 

you f o r the r a t i o n a l e t o do t h a t . 

A. Well, i t ' s become apparent t o us i n o p e r a t i n g the 

f i e l d t h a t w e l l s under e x i s t i n g 640-acre spacing completed 

i n t h e Lower Barker Creek and the A l k a l i Gulch have been 

e f f e c t i v e l y drained on 640-acre spacing. 

Current pressures are i n the range of h a l f the 

o r i g i n a l pressure i n t h a t e x i s t i n g p r o d u c t i v e pool — or 

i n t e r v a l . And we see no reason t o t r y and i n f i l l f o r 

a d d i t i o n a l reserves since i t looks l i k e i t has been 
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e f f e c t i v e l y drained on i t s present spacing. 

Q. Do you have any geologic data or information t o 

cause you to believe you should downspace tha t proposed 

lower pool? 

A. Well, we have what we think i s geologic 

information t o the opposite. We think we should leave i t 

alone. 

We have some production information and some 

pressure information, l i k e I said, that shows the depletion 

on e x i s t i n g spacing. And — 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What's the argument to include the 

Lower Barker Creek and the A l k a l i — i s i t ? — Gulch? 

A. A l k a l i . 

Q. — and the A l k a l i Gulch portion? You've 

i d e n t i f i e d them as having s l i g h t l y d i f f e r e n t geologic 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s , i f I believe — I remember. 

A. They are separated by some t i g h t impermeable 

section. And the reason we'd l i k e t o keep them included i n 

the same pool r i g h t now i s , based on the development 

o r i g i n a l l y i n the 1940s and 1950s of the Lower Barker Creek 

— or the f i e l d on t h i s s t r u c t u r a l — the structure of 

the — Based on the development of the structure of the 

f i e l d , they were at times along the development plan 

commingled and produced together. 

And when they are produced l i k e t h a t , i t ' s become 
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apparent th a t depletion has occurred i n both zones. 

They're about at the same pressure and can be produced at 

the same — i n the same wellbore commingled, based on the 

640-acre spacing. 

Q. I s there any p r a c t i c a l reason, then, t o separate 

them i n t o two d i f f e r e n t reservoirs? 

A. No, we see none. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's go up and look at the next 

pool. 

A. The next pool that we propose i s the Upper Barker 

Creek-Akah Pool, and we would propose that t h a t be allowed 

t o be developed on 320-acre spacing. 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . What's the reason t o combine 

t h a t i n t e r v a l i n t o one pool? 

A. O r i g i n a l l y we had proposed t o create a separate, 

single pool i n the Upper Barker Creek, which i s a porous 

dolomite, developed on the structure at Barker Dome. 

We thought that, based on modern w i r e l i n e logs we 

have looked at through the i n t e r v a l and some cuttings 

descriptions t h a t we have, that i t was not as good a 

q u a l i t y reservoir as the Lower Barker Creek was i n terms of 

permeability and porosity. 

And the l i t t l e b i t of t e s t data th a t we have on 

the zone showed us rates that were lower than the more 

p r o l i f i c and better q u a l i t y reservoir i n the Lower Barker 
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Creek. 

And so we proposed to develop i t on 3 20-acre 

spacing t o understand i t better and optimize recoveries out 

of i t . 

I n t a l k i n g with our Aztec — the Aztec o f f i c e , 

Frank Chavez, the superintendent of the Aztec o f f i c e , 

suggested t o us that we include the Akah w i t h i n t h i s Upper 

Barker Creek-Akah Pool and allow that t o be commingled as 

one separate pool. 

Q. For the record, he's r e f e r r i n g t o Mr. Chavez, the 

supervisor at the OCD Office i n Aztec. 

Go ahead. 

A. And i t was his recommendation that we include the 

Akah with t h i s pool so there would be no gap v e r t i c a l l y 

w i t h i n the d e f i n i t i o n of the pools on the structure. 

Q. I n terms of reservoir management and practice, do 

you see any reason not to do a combination? 

A. No, i t does not present a problem t o us, and we 

f e e l t h a t i f any productive opportunities arise i n the Akah 

zone, i t would be of a poorer q u a l i t y reservoir 

c h a r a c t e r i s t i c , and 320-acre spacing would probably be 

e f f e c t i v e as a s t a r t i n g point f o r developing i t . 

Q. I s there currently any Akah production i n the 

pool? 

A. No, there i s not. I t ' s a series of evaporites, 
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shales and t i g h t dolomites. 

Q. So we don't have any technical data that would 

cause us to support creating that as i t s own separate pool 

at t h i s point? 

A. That's correct. That's o r i g i n a l l y why we l e f t i t 

out. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Okay, take us up to the Desert Creek. 

A. I n the Desert Creek we would l i k e t o recommend a 

development of a separate pool prorated on 320-acre 

spacing. 

We have modern wirel i n e log data, we have cored 

the i n t e r v a l i n some recently d r i l l e d wells, and as our 

reservoir engineer, Mr. Lane, w i l l point out and show i n 

his testimony, based on some production information and 

volumetrics, that 320-acre spacing looks l i k e a good, sound 

basis f o r developing the pool t o i d e n t i f y i t s l i m i t s and 

productive p o t e n t i a l . I t ' s a f i n e l y i n t e r c r y s t a l l i n e 

dolomite. 

Q. Okay. When you move out of the Desert Creek and 

look at the Ismay, characterize that as a reservoir f o r us. 

A. The Ismay i s the highest s t r a t i g r a p h i c i n t e r v a l 

t h a t we propose t o create a pool i n . We would l i k e t o see 

the a b i l i t y t o develop the Ismay on 160-acre spacing, 

because based on core that we have studied and wi r e l i n e 

logs throughout the new d r i l l s that we've d r i l l e d , we f i n d 
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1 t h a t t h e Ismay i s a limestone w i t h predominantly vuggy 

2 p o r o s i t y , which means i t i s a solution-enhanced p o r o s i t y 

3 t h a t i s not very w e l l interconnected i n the r e s e r v o i r and 

4 has lower p e r m e a b i l i t y o v e r a l l than any of the other 

5 r e s e r v o i r s i n the f i e l d . 

6 And so i t has a l o t less e f f e c t i v e drainage area, 

7 and t h a t ' s our basis f o r asking f o r a 160-acre spacing i n 

8 the Ismay. 

9 Q. Okay. Let's go back t o E x h i b i t 9, which we've 

10 been u t i l i z i n g as a l o c a t o r map. I ' l l g i v e you another one 

11 i f you don't have one. 

12 Let's again use i t as a l o c a t o r map, and i n the 

13 small book help me f i n d the index f o r the w e l l s . I b e l i e v e 

14 i t ' s behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 7. 

15 A. I t i s . 

16 Q. Let's go through t h a t data. 

17 A. Okay. 

18 Q. Before we describe the data, show the Examiner 

19 how you've organized the w e l l i n f o r m a t i o n behind E x h i b i t 

20 Tab Number 7. 

21 A. E x h i b i t 7 i s a t a b l e l i s t i n g the e x i s t i n g t e s t s 

22 d r i l l e d i n the New Mexico p o r t i o n of the Barker Creek Dome 

23 f i e l d . I t ' s l i s t e d i n c h r o n o l o g i c a l order, s t a r t i n g w i t h 

24 the f i r s t d r i l l e d up t o the l a s t d r i l l e d . There are 11 

25 w e l l s t h a t have been d r i l l e d i n t h a t — f o r those pool area 
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1 t o date. 

2 And what i t shows i s the zone curr e n t l y producing 

3 out of, where productive. I f i t was a dry hole, i t ' s 

4 noted. 

5 And we have one water disposal w e l l located 

6 w i t h i n t h i s area of the pool, and i t has been plugged back 

7 to the shallower Morrison formation. 

8 I n addition, there are acreage dedications, 

9 location where i t i s with respect to what section, and any 

10 comments tha t we thought would be relevant to the 

11 discussion. 

12 Q. A l l r i g h t . Those are a l l the wells? 

13 A. That's r i g h t . 

14 Q. Let's go back and compare that information with 

15 the color code on Exhibit 9, s t a r t i n g o f f with the proposed 

16 uppermost pool, the Ismay pool. 

17 A. A l l r i g h t . 

18 Q. I d e n t i f y f o r the Examiner which, i f any, of these 

19 e x i s t i n g wells either are now or can be Ismay producers 

20 under t h i s plan. 

21 A. Currently i n the f i e l d , i n the New Mexico portion 

22 of the pool, there are two e x i s t i n g wells completed i n the 

23 Ismay zone, and they are located here on the very eastern 

24 and central s t r u c t u r a l portion of the pool with regard to 

25 s t r u c t u r a l s e t t i n g . 
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And the color code on the map i s , purple c i r c l e s 

are Ismay completions, blue are Desert Creek completions, 

and then the pink i s Lower Barker Creek and A l k a l i Gulch 

commingled completions, or j u s t Lower Barker Creek 

completions. 

And what we see i s , we have two Ismay completions 

at the current time producing. We have two blue Desert 

Creek completions o f f on the west flank of t h i s structure. 

And then the remaining four that are pink are completed i n 

the Lower Barker Creek and possibly commingled also with 

the A l k a l i Gulch. 

I w i l l point out that the two wells i n Section 19 

t h a t are completed i n the Lower Barker Creek, only one i s 

a c t i v e l y producing at t h i s time. I t ' s the Ute 14 i n the 

northeast of that section. And we are currently evaluating 

ad d i t i o n a l opportunities w i t h i n the Ute 11 wellbore i n 

order t o see i f we can recomplete i t to another zone before 

plugging i t completely as a dry hole. 

Q. I f you obtain the approvals to subdivide the 

Pennsylvanian and establish these multiple new pools, what 

kind of opportunity f o r additional wells i s there created 

by t h a t process? 

A. There i s s i g n i f i c a n t opportunity created, which 

cu r r e n t l y we cannot take advantage of as an operator. 

Q. Let's t a l k about the immediate, foreseeable plans 
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t h a t you're already scheduling i n the hope t h a t you o b t a i n 

your approvals t o reformulate the r u l e s . 

Can you give us a time reference and t e l l us 

w i t h i n t h a t time reference what your expectations are f o r 

new w e l l s ? 

A. Well, we have gone out and c u r r e n t l y staked f i v e 

a d d i t i o n a l l o c a t i o n s w i t h i n the New Mexico p o r t i o n of the 

f i e l d w i t h the i n t e n t of being able t o d r i l l and develop 

a d d i t i o n a l d r i l l blocks w i t h i n t h a t p o r t i o n of the p o o l , i f 

we get the spacing requests t h a t we are asking f o r . 

Q. Can you estimate f o r us the cost of each of those 

wells? 

A. We have found w e l l s d r i l l e d and completed i n the 

Barker Creek Dome f i e l d have run us about $1.3 m i l l i o n 

apiece. 

And these w e l l s t h a t we have — The c u r r e n t 

staked l o c a t i o n s are planned t o be developed a t any time 

the weather allows, although a t t h i s p o i n t i t looks l i k e we 

wouldn't s t a r t up u n t i l s p r i n g again a t t h i s time. 

But we are a t t h i s time planning on developing 

those f i v e a d d i t i o n a l staked l o c a t i o n s i n the e a r l y s p r i n g . 

Q. I s Meridian the operator and/or the lessee of a l l 

the o i l and gas r i g h t s t o d r i l l w i t h i n the pool boundary 

t h a t you propose? 

A. Yes. 
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1 Q. We don't have any other operators w i t h i n t h i s 

2 pool as you propose t o have i t configured? 

3 A. No. 

4 Q. Let's go t o the unique circumstances w i t h regards 

5 t o w e l l spacing. 

6 A. Okay. 

7 Q. Do you have a d i s p l a y t h a t w i l l i l l u s t r a t e f o r us 

8 the v a r i o u s surfaces e i t h e r topographical or a r c h e o l o g i c a l 

9 l i m i t a t i o n s t h a t you're faced w i t h as an operator i n 

10 l o c a t i n g wells? 

11 A. Yes, we do. 

12 Q. A l l r i g h t , how i s t h a t shown? 

13 A. Well, we have i t here as an a e r i a l photo, low-

14 a l t i t u d e a e r i a l photo w i t h an overlay showing the proposed 

15 pool o u t l i n e . 

16 Q. Do we have some extras of those? 

17 A. We have one e x t r a — 

18 Q. One extra? 

19 A. — p i c t u r e , so w e ' l l have t o o r i e n t t h i s , 

20 perhaps, t o the audience, i f you — 

21 Q. Yeah. Why don't you — You've memorized t h i s 

22 s t u f f , Jim, r i g h t ? 

23 A. Yeah. 

24 Q. You don't need t o look a t i t . 

25 A. Well, I won't go t h a t f a r . 
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1 Q. How good are your eyes? 

2 A. That's good. 

3 Q. F i r s t of a l l , before we describe the d e t a i l s , 

4 what1 s the base map? What's the source? 

5 A. The base map i s a Department of T r a n s p o r t a t i o n 

6 l o w - a l t i t u d e a e r i a l photo of the proposed pool area i n New 

7 Mexico, i n which — I be l i e v e i t was run by the E l Paso 

8 Na t u r a l Gas Company several years back t o l o c a t e p i p e l i n e s 

9 and other production f a c i l i t i e s i n t h a t area. 

10 Q. Have you and other members of Meridian s t a f f 

11 u t i l i z e d t h i s map? 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. Have you found i t t o be accurate and r e l i a b l e ? 

14 A. Yes, I have. 

15 Q. Do you f i n d any d i s t o r t i o n on the map t h a t you 

16 need t o e x p l a i n t o us? 

17 A. No, I don't. 

18 Q. Okay. What's the base map show? You know, i s 

19 t h e r e a p a r t i c u l a r p o i n t i n time t h a t we're l o o k i n g a t the 

20 surface here? 

21 A. I t ' s probably about t e n years o l d , I'm not sure. 

22 There might be a date p r i n t e d on the bottom. I can't see 

23 i t from here. 

24 Q. A l l r i g h t . 

25 A. I ' l l guess i t ' s 1975 vi n t a g e , something l i k e 
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t h a t . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What i s the significance of the 

orange boundary? 

A. Well, the orange boundary i s the same proposed 

pool o u t l i n e as i n a l l the other e x h i b i t s , and i n addition 

the hot orange tape or fluorescent orange tape i s the 

section l i n e s , and so you can see i t ' s quite a larger scale 

than any of the other presentations. I t looks l i k e i t ' s 

about — Several inches equals a mile. 

Q. Have you i d e n t i f i e d the ex i s t i n g pool wells with 

a color code? 

A. Yeah, there are some orange w e l l , gas-well 

symbols, posting the ex i s t i n g well control at the current 

time on t h a t a e r i a l photo. 

Q. And what are the significance of the red open 

circl e s ? 

A. The red open c i r c l e s are proposed locations that 

we have staked and i n i t i a t e d approval through the 

regulatory agencies. 

Q. Are these wells planned i n the expectation i n 

hope t h a t there would be pool r u l e changes? 

A. Yes, they are. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Would these wells be d r i l l e d without 

the pool r u l e changes? 

A. We'd have t o look and see i f they would f i t the 
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e x i s t i n g spacing and setback l i m i t a t i o n s . Some — i f — 

Bear w i t h me here f o r a second. 

Q. Well, l e t me put i t t o you t h i s way: Were these 

planned and approved by your company w i t h the exp e c t a t i o n 

of the pool r u l e changes? 

A. We were hoping f o r i t , yes, s i r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t , s i r . And i f they're not changed, 

you're going t o have t o r e t h i n k these? 

A. Well, we would c e r t a i n l y s t i l l l i k e t o develop 

th e area, but i t would incorporate an a d d i t i o n a l untimely 

delay, which we would very much l i k e t o avoid. 

Q. What i s the meaning or s i g n i f i c a n c e of the areas 

contained i n the oddly shaped green o u t l i n e ? 

A. The green-taped o u t l i n e s are a r c h e o l o g i c a l s i t e s 

t h a t have been i d e n t i f i e d through the s t a k i n g process of 

those f i v e newly staked w e l l s as we went out w i t h our 

surveyors and the other r e g u l a t o r y people t o t r y and stake 

w e l l s i n acceptable setbacks as they p r e s e n t l y are on the 

books f o r the pool. 

Q. I f I'm w i t h i n the pool boundary and w i t h i n a 

green o u t l i n e , I'm precluded by whatever l i m i t a t i o n from 

using t h a t surface? 

A. Absolutely. 

Q. Does t h a t mean you've examined the e n t i r e surface 

area of the pool? 
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A. No, t h i s i s merely the d e n s i t y we've found i n 

a t t e m p t i n g t o stake the f i v e new l o c a t i o n s . 

There are c e r t a i n l y — most l i k e l y the same 

d e n s i t y i n a l l the other d r i l l blocks, but we haven't gone 

out t h e r e and looked a t them i n the modern s t a k i n g process. 

So I would say i n those sections t h a t have been 

looked a t where th e r e are two d r i l l blocks or two new-stake 

l o c a t i o n s , t h a t ' s probably f a i r l y r e p r e s e n t a t i v e of the 

d e n s i t y of a r c h e o l o g i c a l s i t e s throughout the area. 

Q. Describe f o r us the k i n d of l i m i t a t i o n s on the 

surface t h a t you have t o solve i n order t o use the surface 

f o r w e l l l o c a t i o n s . 

A. Well, i t i s a very rugged area. I n a d d i t i o n t o 

the a r c h e o l o g i c a l s i t e s , the other h a l f of our dilemma i s 

t h a t t h e r e are very steep canyons, h i g h l y wooded areas, 

r e l i e f on the order o f , i n some places, 800 f e e t between 

the canyon bottom and the mesa top, which render l o t s of 

slopes w i t h i n those d r i l l blocks i n a c c e s s i b l e or unviable 

t o development of — c r e a t i o n of a d r i l l s i t e t o d r i l l a 

w e l l . 

Q. Have you i n t e g r a t e d t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n about 

surface use i n t o your proposed plan f o r w e l l spacing f o r 

each of these i n d i v i d u a l pools? 

A. We have t r i e d t o accommodate the topographic 

problems and the archaeologic problems w i t h what we're 
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1 requesting f o r setbacks. 

2 Q. I f y o u ' l l turn to Exhibit Tab 4 of the l i t t l e 

3 book, we've already described the f i r s t display, which i s 

4 the current conditions — 

5 A. Right. 

6 Q. — f o r which you have concluded what, s i r ? 

7 A. They're very r e s t r i c t i v e . 

8 Q. Let's look at the next display a f t e r t h a t . What 

9 does t h a t demonstrate? 

10 A. This i s an i l l u s t r a t i o n of our proposed spacing 

11 fo r 160-acre d r i l l blocks, which i s 330 back from the 

12 section l i n e and 20 from the quarter section l i n e s — or, 

13 excuse me, quarter-quarter section boundaries. 

14 Q. And you would propose t h i s w e l l spacing setback 

15 r u l e f o r the Ismay Pool? 

16 A. That i s correct. 

17 Q. A l l r i g h t . What does t h i s a f f o r d you i n terms of 

18 a unique solution to your p a r t i c u l a r area? 

19 A. Well, i t may help us i n locating wells without 

20 disturbing archeological s i t e s , and also preclude 

21 ad d i t i o n a l burdensome expenses t o locating d r i l l s i t e s , and 

22 perhaps precluding us d r i l l i n g marginal d r i l l blocks, which 

23 otherwise wouldn't be developed. 

24 Q. Let's turn t o what you are recommending f o r the 

25 w e l l footage locations f o r the 320-spaced pools. I f y o u ' l l 
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1 t u r n t o the next sheet. 

2 A. Well, t h i s i s what we would recommend f o r 

3 setbacks under the 320-acre spacing a l l o c a t i o n . We would 

4 be 790 from the section lines and 1190 from a quarter-

5 quarter section l i n e , and no closer than 13 0 feet t o any 

6 quarter section l i n e or subdivision. 

7 And t h i s again would grant us a very greatly 

8 increased f l e x i b i l i t y i n t r y i n g t o locate wells i n a 

9 d i f f i c u l t area. 

10 Q. How does t h i s 790 setback on 320 spacing f o r 

11 these pools compare, i f at a l l , to any other 320 gas 

12 spacing rules i n the San Juan Basin? 

13 A. I believe that t h i s i s the same setback as i s 

14 invoked r i g h t now on the Dakota i n the San Juan Basin, the 

15 Mesaverde Gas Pool, which are both on 320-acre spacing at 

16 the present time. 

17 Q. A l l r i g h t , and I think also the coal gas? 

18 A. Okay, Fruitland Coal. 

19 Q. A l l r i g h t . Let's look now at the 640 spacing. 

20 I f the Examiner approves the creation of these 

21 pools and the contraction of the e x i s t i n g pool which stays 

22 on 640 spacing, do you have a recommendation of what to do 

23 with the footage locations f o r that 640 pool? 

24 A. Well, we would l i k e to also be able t o , i n the 

25 event of new technology or additional data i n d i c a t i n g t h a t 
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1 we have l e f t reserves i n the ground i n the Lower Barker 

2 Creek, we would l i k e the f l e x i b i l i t y to also locate wells, 

3 even on the 640-acre spacing, with a l i t t l e more 

4 f l e x i b i l i t y than we have at the present time, and t h i s i s 

5 the setbacks and the f l e x i b i l i t y that we would prefer. 

6 There i s at t h i s time work and study being done 

7 by myself to look at the e x i s t i n g remaining p o t e n t i a l i n 

8 the A l k a l i Gulch portion of the Lower Barker Creek-Alkali 

9 Gulch Pool. We have found that there could be economic 

10 reserves s t i l l there i n the ground. And so there i s the 

11 chance, when the work i s finished, that we would propose 

12 new d r i l l s t o t e s t p o t e n t i a l i n the A l k a l i Gulch. So we 

13 would l i k e t h i s f l e x i b i l i t y , too, f o r the A l k a l i Gulch-

14 Barker Creek Pool. 

15 Q. Do you have a recommendation to the Examiner as 

16 to what i s an appropriate period of time by which to 

17 establish these rules on a temporary basis a f t e r which, 

18 then, you would be required t o come back to the regulatory 

19 agency, submit additional data, and determine i f any 

20 adjustments should be made i n your pools? 

21 A. Absolutely. 

22 Q. What i s your recommendation? 

23 A. Mr. Examiner, we would l i k e a temporary basis of 

24 a decision f o r two years, to go out and d r i l l these wells 

25 and gather more information so that we can more c l e a r l y 
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understand the productive p o t e n t i a l and nature of these 

reservoirs and then be w i l l i n g t o come back at th a t time 

and formulate more detailed plans as the data allows us to 

determine. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, that concludes my 

d i r e c t examination of Mr. Hornbeck. 

We would at t h i s time move the introduction of 

the Exhibits that he's authenticated, which are Exhibits 2 

through 7, and then 9, 10 and 11. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Exhibits 2 through 7 and 9, 

10 and 11 w i l l be admitted as evidence i n t h i s case. 

I thi n k what we'll do at t h i s point i s maybe take 

a short break and l e t Mr. Vaughn get his questions 

together, and then we'll proceed with him a f t e r we come 

back from th a t . So l e t ' s take about ten minutes. 

(Thereupon, a recess was taken at 1:58 p.m.) 

(The following proceedings had at 2:10 p.m.) 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, l e t ' s c a l l the hearing 

back t o order and turn i t over to Mr. Vaughn. 

EXAMINATION 

BY MR. VAUGHN: 

Q. I have j u s t a few questions f o r you, Mr. 

Hornbeck. 

With reference to Exhibit 9, which i s t h i s 

contour map here, what i s the lowest s t r u c t u r a l elevation 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



62 

1 believed t o be productive? Can you t e l l us from t h a t map? 

2 A. I n which horizon? 

3 Q. I n the whole a n t i c l i n e . 

4 A. There's been a gas/water contact established i n 

5 the Lower Barker Creek, and i n a l l the other pools there 

6 has not been a downdip water leg or downdip productive 

7 l i m i t established at t h i s time. 

8 And i f you'd notice, some of the wells t h a t we 

9 have staked f o r t h i s coming d r i l l i n g season, we are 

10 d r i l l i n g down the flank, t r y i n g t o establish t h a t 

11 productive l i m i t . 

12 Q. Okay. And are you aware which Meridian has f i l e d 

13 with the State of Colorado to change any spacing i n the 

14 northern portion of t h i s a n t i c l i n e that crosses the 

15 boundary? 

16 A. We have not f i l e d , but our plans are to do that 

17 s h o r t l y . 

18 Q. Could you explain a l i t t l e the purpose of the 

19 w e l l that's marked Ute Number 1? I believe that's an old 

20 El Paso Natural Gas w e l l . Why was that completed f o r 

21 disposal? 

22 A. Well, that was an o r i g i n a l t e s t i n t o the Lower 

23 Barker Creek, completed and produced i n t h a t zone up u n t i l 

24 i t had cum'd many b i l l i o n cubic feet of gas. 

25 I t watered out and — as did a l l the other, older 
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1 o r i g i n a l t e s t s completed i n the Lower Barker Creek, and t o 

2 dispose of produced water i n the f i e l d , i t was converted t o 

3 a shallower horizon t o take the produced water out of the 

4 Lower Barker Creek. 

5 Q. With reference t o your proposed pools, which 

6 produce or are believed t o contain sour hydrogen s u l f i d e ? 

7 A. We are prepared and a n t i c i p a t e t h a t a l l of them 

8 w i l l . 

9 Q. T h e y ' l l a l l be sour? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. We understand t h a t one reason f o r the spacing 

12 request i s because of ar c h e o l o g i c a l and topographic 

13 c o n s t r a i n t s . 

14 How are you proposing t h a t Meridian d i l i g e n t l y 

15 develop a l l new spacing u n i t s i f t h i s proposal i s granted? 

16 A. I t h i n k w e ' l l assume we w i l l d r i l l out t o the 

17 economic l i m i t of each pool and t r y t o develop i t i n the 

18 best f a s h i o n we can. 

19 MR. VAUGHN: I have no f u r t h e r questions of Mr. 

20 Hornbeck 

21 EXAMINATION 

22 BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

23 Q. Mr. Hornbeck, your proposed pool boundary i s an 

24 expansion of the e x i s t i n g pool. What geologic i n f o r m a t i o n 

25 d i d you u t i l i z e t o con s t r u c t the proposed pool boundary? 
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1 A. That was a decision based on the — Well, l e t me 

2 j u s t say th a t we are proposing to expand the pool on the 

3 west and southern parts of the e x i s t i n g pool. 

4 There's — And what has been done i n th a t i s , we 

5 recompleted the Ute 6 i n Section 7 t o the Desert Creek, and 

6 i t i s a producer at the current time. I t ' s i n the 

7 southwest of Section 7, outside the proposed pool boundary. 

8 So we would l i k e to include that — I'm sorry, 

9 I'm on Exhibit 3. 

10 Q. I'm l o s t . 

11 A. I'm sorry, I should have said t h a t . 

12 Q. Okay. 

13 A. Exhibit 3. 

14 MR. KELLAHIN: Start over, Jim. 

15 THE WITNESS: On Exhibit 3, the p l a t showing the 

16 proposed and the current pool boundaries — 

17 Q. (By Examiner Catanach) Right. 

18 A. — i n the southwest of Section 17, the Ute 6, 

19 which was an o r i g i n a l deeper Lower Barker Creek completion, 

20 watered out and was i n the l a s t several years recompleted 

21 t o the shallower Desert Creek and i s productive from that 

22 zone at the current time. 

23 So we propose t o expand the pool boundary t o 

24 include the known productive well outside the pool at the 

25 current time. 
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I n addition, we have re-studied the old w i r e l i n e 

logs on the Ute 7 i n Section 19, southwest of Section 19, 

and based on the data from the 6 recompletion and the 

correlations with the Ute 7 old w i r e l i n e logs, I've 

determined t h a t both Section 18 and 3 0 are productive t o 

some degree i n several of those horizons, and we'd l i k e t o 

go i n and t e s t them. 

So based on that information geologically, we 

decided i t would be prudent at t h i s time t o attempt t o 

expand the pool boundary to include both Sections 18 and 

30. 

Q. But i n Sections 18 and 30 you've got no 

established production at t h i s point? 

A. We don't, but we are proposing i n the current 

wells staked t o gain some additional o f f s e t information 

t h a t would allow us to d r i l l out to those locations. They 

are the fur t h e s t down the flank of the structure, and we're 

d r i l l i n g out t o the downdip l i m i t , as we had mentioned 

before. 

Q. Any well that i s d r i l l e d i n Sections 18 and 30 

w i l l be w i t h i n a mile of the outer boundary of the current 

pool boundaries and w i l l be subject t o those pool rules, so 

I'm not sure i t ' s an advantage at t h i s point t o include 

t h a t acreage, or even a necessity t o include th a t acreage 

i f i t ' s not been proven productive. That's something we'll 
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1 have t o take i n t o consideration. 

2 A. Okay. 

3 Q. I t ' s my understanding that at the present time 

4 you've got established production i n three of the 

5 formations, the Ismay, the Desert Creek and the Lower 

6 Barker Creek? 

7 A. That's correct. 

8 Q. Have any of the other zones been tested? 

9 A. Yes, they have. 

10 Q. Which zones have been tested? 

11 A. Well, I guess i f you're asking me — I mean, we 

12 have production i n the Lower Barker Creek, the Desert Creek 

13 and the Ismay, w i t h i n the proposed pool o u t l i n e , so I guess 

14 we're focused on the Upper Barker Creek, some information 

15 on t h a t . 

16 Q. Yeah. 

17 A. I'm assuming that's what you're asking me. 

18 Q. Well, that's one of them, yeah. 

19 A. Okay. We have a producing well i n the Upper 

20 Barker Creek at the current time — i n Colorado — and i f 

21 you can r e f e r t o your structure map, Exhibit Number 9, we 

22 have a Ute Com Number 1 well which i s completed i n the 

23 Upper Barker Creek r i g h t here and commingled with the lower 

24 Barker Creek at the present time, but c e r t a i n l y i s 

25 con t r i b u t i n g t o the production i n that w e l l . 

STEVEN T. BRENNER, CCR 
(505) 989-9317 



67_ 

I n addition, we have tested the Upper Barker 

Creek i n the Ute 24 well i n the northwest of Section 20 and 

had a small rate of gas out of i t on t h i s side of the 

structure. 

So what we see i s production associated o v e r a l l 

w i t h the s t r u c t u r a l s e t t i n g along the e n t i r e trend of the 

structure, and we f e e l that there's prospective section, 

based on the old o r i g i n a l e-logs throughout t h i s e n t i r e 

area, and t h a t i s one of the zones we w i l l be evaluating as 

we d r i l l a dditional wells i n the area. 

The A l k a l i Gulch has been commingled i n several 

of the o r i g i n a l tests d r i l l e d i n the New Mexico portion of 

the f i e l d and has contributed to the o v e r a l l production i n 

the f i e l d t o date, and we believe there i s additional 

p o t e n t i a l t o be developed that we are looking at at the 

current time. 

Q. I t has actually been perforated i n some of these 

wells? 

A. Yes, i t has. I n f a c t , on cross-section X-X', 

I ' l l t r y and f i n d one f o r you. 

There are perforations noted on the old o r i g i n a l 

wells on t h i s cross-section, and i f you look along i n the 

A l k a l i Gulch i n t e r v a l , the Ute 11 well — and i t ' s i n 

Section 21, i n the northwest of Section 21 — i t was 

perforated and produced i n a commingled fashion with the 
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Lower Barker Creek. 

The Ute 12 well was tested i n the A l k a l i Gulch 

and a f t e r some production was separated from the Upper 

Barker Creek and then j u s t solely produced with the Upper 

Barker Creek and tested i n the Ute 8 well also. 

And at the current time we have a zone i n the Ute 

16, which i s our type log, immediately adjacent to the 

northern boundary of the proposed pool o u t l i n e , which i s i n 

La Plata County r i g h t there. And that w e l l i s currently 

completed i n a zone i n the A l k a l i Gulch and tested over 5-

million-a-day rate of gas, but, as we've said e a r l i e r , at a 

lower pressure than the shallower Ismay and Desert Creek 

horizons. 

So we're waiting f o r the pressures t o equalize so 

we can commingle a l l those zones together. 

Q. Okay, that leaves the — Does tha t leave j u s t the 

Akah? 

A. Yes, i t does, and there has not been any t e s t i n g 

or completions to date i n the Akah, but I'm working on i t . 

Q. I believe you t e s t i f i e d that you have some 

engineering evidence i n the Lower Barker Creek tha t would 

establish t h a t 640 acres i s appropriate; i s th a t correct? 

A. Yes, we do, and our reservoir engineer w i l l be 

presenting that here. 

Q. What other evidence do you have f o r each of these 
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zones t o e s t a b l i s h even on a temporary basis what the 

spacing should be? Do you have any geologic information? 

A. Well, we've developed a model f o r each ho r i z o n , 

based on the core data t h a t we have acquired and the new 

d r i l l s , along w i t h modern w i r e l i n e logs, t o support the 

p o r o s i t i e s and allow us t o b u i l d v o l u m e t r i c cases f o r each 

zone, and i n t e r p r e t e d areas of drainage, and those models 

w i l l a l s o be presented by our r e s e r v o i r engineer, Mr. Lane. 

I'm s o r r y , you asked about the geologic 

i n f o r m a t i o n , d i d n ' t you? 

Q. Well — 

A. We have hole-core a n a l y s i s p o r o s i t i e s , which have 

allowed us t o accurate l y i n t e r p r e t the modern w i r e l i n e logs 

and b u i l d v o l u m e t r i c cases f o r a l l zones. 

Q. What w e l l do you have core data from? 

A. We have a few core data p o i n t s . 

For the Ismay zone we have hole-core i n f o r m a t i o n 

and a n a l y s i s from the Ute 16, the type l o g , i n which we 

cored the m a j o r i t y of the Ismay i n t e r v a l and the pr o d u c t i v e 

horizons. 

For the Desert Creek we have hole-core a n a l y s i s 

from t h e Ute 24, which i s i n the northwest of Section 20, 

i n t h e proposed pool o u t l i n e , i n New Mexico. 

And i n a d d i t i o n t o t h a t , we have hole-core 

a n a l y s i s f o r the Upper Barker Creek also i n the Ute 16, 
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which i s our type l o g e x h i b i t , on several e x h i b i t s , and we 

have hole-core a n a l y s i s from the Colorado p o r t i o n of the 

f i e l d i n the Lower Barker Creek. 

And we only have modern w i r e l i n e l o g data f o r the 

A l k a l i Gulch. 

Q. I s the Lower Barker Creek the only f o r m a t i o n t h a t 

you have e x i s t i n g production i n f o r m a t i o n from which t o make 

a det e r m i n a t i o n of spacing? 

A. No, I b e l i e v e we have — We'll present cases f o r 

the Ismay, Desert Creek and Lower Barker Creek. 

Q. Okay. I s p a r t of the r a t i o n a l e f o r — The way 

t h a t you s p l i t up these zones, i s p a r t of t h a t r a t i o n a l e 

based on the drainage areas? Do they have s i m i l a r drainage 

areas? 

A. That i s c o r r e c t , yes, they do. 

We also know t h a t there's been d e p l e t i o n i n the 

lower main producing, Lower Barker Creek and A l k a l i Gulch, 

and we cannot commingle the upper, higher-pressure, 

undepleted Ismay Desert Creek along w i t h t he lower, 

depleted-pressure Lower Barker Creek i n e x i s t i n g wellbores. 

Q. I b e l i e v e Mr. K e l l a h i n asked you a question, and 

I'm not sure t h a t i t was — t h a t I got the answer t o i t , 

about d e p l e t i n g some of these zones and then coming back 

uphole and recompleting i n some of the a d d i t i o n a l 

p r o d u c t i v e i n t e r v a l s . I s t h a t not an o p t i o n w i t h Meridian? 
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A. I t i s d e f i n i t e l y an option, and we have u t i l i z e d 

i t where we can. 

For example, a l l of the colored, non-pink-colored 

c i r c l e s on our structure map, Exhibit 9, are recompletion 

— I'm sorry, that's not correct. 

Three of the four colored c i r c l e s with Desert 

Creek and Ismay completions are recompletions i n e x i s t i n g 

older wellbores. 

The Ute 24, i n the northwest of Section 20, i s a 

new d r i l l and completed i n the Desert Creek. 

But the Ute 6 i n the southwest of 7, the Ute 4 i n 

Section — I believe i t ' s 10, and the Ute 8 i n Section 15, 

have a l l been shallower recompletions from e x i s t i n g deeper 

te s t s which have — were completed and watered out i n the 

Lower Barker Creek, and we came up and tested shallower 

horizons and recompleted as productive. 

I'm sorry, that's — We have t r i e d t o u t i l i z e 

t h a t where we can. 

Q. I n t r y i n g to understand Meridian's plan of 

development f o r the f i e l d , w i t h i n any given section, would 

you attempt some dual completions or some downhole 

comminglings, or how would you propose to develop a l l of 

these separate zones with the fewest number of wells you 

have to d r i l l ? 

A. What we've found has been a f a i r l y successful 
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scenario has been to d r i l l and t e s t and evaluate with 

w i r e l i n e logs a l l horizons, and then where we can commingle 

higher pressure, uncompleted i n t e r v a l s , we w i l l commingle. 

There are two or three new d r i l l s i n Colorado i n 

which we have commingled the Desert Creek and the Ismay i n 

new wellbores, because they are simil a r i n i t i a l bottomhole 

pressures. 

So i n answer to your question, we would commingle 

wherever possible. 

Dual completions under a sour gas environment are 

not very appealing to Meridian O i l because of the 

complications with — p o t e n t i a l f o r r i s k . And so we w i l l 

t r y and commingle as many zones as possible or p r a c t i c a l . 

Q. I'm not sure t h i s i s — that you may be the 

appropriate one to answer a question l i k e t h i s , but t h i s 

spacing — I mean, t h i s pool has been spaced on 640 acres 

f o r a long period of time. 

A. Uh-huh. 

Q. Would i t be more reasonable, maybe, to request an 

i n f i l l d r i l l i n g provision w i t h i n t h i s pool where you could 

d r i l l on shallow — on lesser — denser spacing? 

A. You're probably i n that I'm not the r i g h t person 

to answer t h i s question, but I would o f f e r a geologic 

i n s i g h t i f you'd care to hear i t . 

Q. Sure. 
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A. Part of the problem that we've had i n developing 

t h i s f i e l d has been the fac t that i n some of the Desert 

Creek completions we've had enough success tha t we're 

looking at wells that w i l l have a 20- to 3 0- or 4 0-year 

l i f e of t h e i r own i n recompletions or new d r i l l s . 

And when you recomplete a wel l i n , say, an 

ex i s t i n g deeper t e s t , based on the 640-acre spacing, we 

would not get the chance t o i n f i l l the o f f s e t acreage 

because of length of production out of that newer horizon, 

shallower horizon. 

I guess that doesn't lend i t s e l f t o i n f i l l 

d r i l l i n g , but that i s a problem that we have come across 

several times i n t h i s portion of the f i e l d , and we'd l i k e 

t o address with additional spacing t o allow us the 

f l e x i b i l i t y t o go i n and i n f i l l e f f i c i e n t l y i n the horizons 

and develop them. 

Q. Within each given section w i t h i n t h i s pool, how 

many wellbores do you think i t would take t o e f f i c i e n t l y 

develop a l l these zones? Or how many wellbores does 

Meridian propose to d r i l l w i t h i n each given section? 

A. Well, we have a basic framework of one wel l per 

640, f o r the most part. And i n that we've had the chance 

t o deplete the ex i s t i n g main productive horizon, the Lower 

Barker Creek and the A l k a l i Gulch, as we know from pressure 

information taken through the f i e l d . 
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That allows — So therefore, based on th a t , we 

would probably not i n f i l l the Lower Barker Creek-Alkali 

Gulch. 

So what you're l e f t with i s a s i t u a t i o n where you 

would l i k e t o develop and evaluate the p o t e n t i a l i n the 

Upper Barker Creek, Ismay and Desert Creek. And i f they're 

a l l at the same pressures and they were productive, we 

would j u s t go ahead and commingle a l l three of those i n a 

single wellbore. 

So one additional w e l l , p o t e n t i a l l y , or two where 

we could maintain the exis t i n g produc- — Actually, l e t me 

back up, because i n most instances the production from the 

Lower Barker Creek has been depleted, and the wells have 

watered out. 

So you would have the opportunity t o recomplete 

the shallower horizons i n that wellbore and then d r i l l an 

add i t i o n a l well on an of f s e t 320 and commingle those 

a d d i t i o n a l horizons. 

For the most part, that would be our plan of 

development at the current time, t o t r y and understand, 

especially, the Ismay and the Upper Barker Creek. I think 

our model on the Desert Creek i s f a i r l y accurate and i s a 

good plan of development on 320 acres. 

Q. So you're t a l k i n g about probably two wells per 

section, maximum? 
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A. That's r e a l l y , I think, what we're looking at 

t r y i n g t o do r i g h t now, yeah. 

Of course, the Ismay, as I've said, i s a poorer-

q u a l i t y reservoir, and where i t i s w e l l developed based on 

geologic analysis, we may need an additional wellbore t o 

e f f e c t i v e l y drain reserves out of i t on 160-acre spacing. 

Q. Just one question. Are you confident that you've 

got geologic separation between a l l of your proposed pools 

and they're not i n v e r t i c a l communication? 

A. We are — We see no depletion i n any of the 

shallower pools. They're a l l at v i r g i n bottomhole 

pressure, normally pressured pressures, a f t e r 35 years of 

production out of the Lower Barker Creek and A l k a l i Gulch. 

Yes, we are certain there's v e r t i c a l separation. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: I have nothing f u r t h e r at the 

present time, Mr. Kellahin. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I'd l i k e t o excuse Mr. Hornbeck 

and c a l l at t h i s time Mr. Lane. 

CHIP LANE. 

the witness herein, a f t e r having been f i r s t duly sworn upon 

his oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as follows: 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Lane, would you please state your name and 

occupation? 
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A. Yes, my name i s Chip Lane. I'm a petroleum 

engineer with Meridian O i l , Inc., located i n Farmington, 

New Mexico. 

Q. When and where did you obtain your professional 

degree? 

A. I graduated from Colorado School of Mines i n 

1984, December, with a bachelor of science i n petroleum 

engineering. 

Q. Summarize fo r us your employment experience as a 

petroleum engineer since obtaining your degree. 

A. I went to work i n 1985 f o r Meridian O i l i n Elk 

City, Oklahoma as a d r i l l i n g engineer. I subsequently 

worked two years there, moved to Amarillo, Texas, again 

with Meridian, worked as a d r i l l i n g and production 

engineer, and two years l a t e r moved to Houston, Texas, 

worked as a reservoir engineer, and l a s t year I moved t o 

Farmington, New Mexico. 

I've worked i n reservoir engineering, production 

engineering and d r i l l i n g engineering through New Mexico, 

Colorado, Oklahoma, Kansas, Texas, Louisiana, Mississippi, 

Alabama, and offshore i n o i l and gas reservoirs from 2 000 

feet deep through 20,000 feet, with o i l and gas, sandstones 

and carbonates. 

Q. What has been your involvement concerning t h i s 

p r oject t h a t Meridian has presented to the Examiner? 
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A. I've been assigned t o examine on an engineering 

basis the producing w e l l s i n the proposed pools and 

determine the drainage area and proposed spacing of those 

w e l l s . 

Q. Have you used commonly u t i l i z e d engineering 

p r o t o c o l , techniques and procedures t o make those type of 

c a l c u l a t i o n s and t o analyze the r e s e r v o i r s t o reach 

conclusions about spacing patterns? 

A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

Q. What other employees of Meridian have 

p a r t i c i p a t e d w i t h you i n t h i s p r o j e c t ? 

A. I've worked w i t h Mr. Hornbeck t o u t i l i z e h i s 

geologic experience and knowledge of the area t o 

ch a r a c t e r i z e the r e s e r v o i r s , t o help determine what the 

drainage areas are. 

Q. As a r e s u l t of your study, do you have any 

engineering conclusions t h a t are c o n t r a r y t o or 

i n c o n s i s t e n t w i t h Mr. Hornbeck's geologic conclusions 

concerning these topics? 

A. No, s i r , I do not. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Lane as an expert 

petroleum engineer. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Lane i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let's t u r n t o the e x h i b i t 

book, Mr. Lane, and l e t ' s f i n d your work product. 
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A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. I have found i t u s e f u l t o take a copy of E x h i b i t 

9, simply as a l o c a t o r . We have one on the d i s p l a y board, 

but i t has helped me f i n d these w e l l s as you and Mr. 

Hornbeck have described them. 

Let's s t a r t w i t h the l o c a t o r map, and behind 

E x h i b i t Tab Number 8, then, there's a pr o d u c t i o n p l o t f o r 

the f i r s t w e l l . What i s t h a t w ell? 

A. Yes, s i r , t h i s i s the Ute 2R. I t ' s l o c a t e d i n 

Section 15 of 32 North, 13 1/2 West, of La P l a t a County, 

Colorado. 

I t ' s about a mi l e t o the n o r t h of the Ute 4, 

which y o u ' l l see on E x h i b i t 9 i s the northernmost purple 

dot adjacent t o the cross-section l i n e . 

Q. What's the s i g n i f i c a n c e of t h i s i n f o r m a t i o n t o 

you? 

A. The f i r s t p l o t i n E x h i b i t Number 8 i s a 

pr o d u c t i o n p l o t of the production from the Ute 2R w e l l , 

which i s a Desert Creek-producing w e l l . 

The s i g n i f i c a n c e i s , t h i s i s a commonly accepted 

manner i n which t o determine the estimated u l t i m a t e 

recovery of the w e l l . 

P l o t t e d along the Y axis i s the d a i l y p r o d u c t i o n 

r a t e i n MCF per day, w i t h a bottom value of 10 and an 

uppermost value of 100 m i l l i o n a day. 
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Along the Y — or the X axis, across the bottom, 

i s the calendar year. 

What t h i s p l o t shows i s the production from the 

w e l l f o r tha t p a r t i c u l a r month. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . What you're looking f o r i s a 

signature w e l l , a t y p i c a l well i n the Desert Creek, by 

which you can analyze that production f o r purposes of 

making engineering forecasts about spacing and recoveries? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

Q. Why have you chosen t h i s w e l l as a t y p i c a l Desert 

Creek w e l l by which, then, t o forecast i t s ultimate 

recovery? 

A. From a discussion with Mr. Hornbeck, and from 

analysis of the other wells i n the Desert Creek, t h i s i s 

p r e t t y much a t y p i c a l well i n the Desert Creek. I t ' s not 

an anomaly productionwise or reservoir-qualitywise or 

anything. We f e l t i t was p r e t t y t y p i c a l . 

The other thing, too, was that i t does have 

modern logs on the well that we can do some volumetric 

analysis with, and i t does have a production h i s t o r y that 

we can forecast the estimated ultimate recovery from. 

The other wells i n New Mexico and Colorado, the 

Ute 24, the new well we d r i l l e d , doesn't have s u f f i c i e n t 

production h i s t o r y to make any sort of estimate of the 

estimated ultimate recovery, and the Ute 6 has old logs 
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which wouldn't allow us to do any sort of volumetric 

analysis t o determine the drainage area. 

Q. Having s a t i s f i e d yourself that the Ute 2R well i s 

a type w e l l f o r the Desert Creek, have you s a t i s f i e d 

yourself t h a t there i s enough production from which you can 

then forecast a decline? 

A. Yes, s i r , there's enough production t o forecast a 

decline. 

Q. Describe f o r us the shape of the decline curve 

tha t you've u t i l i z e d by which t o forecast ultimate gas 

reserves t o be produced by t h i s w e l l . 

Q. This shape i s t y p i c a l of a carbonate-limestone-

dolomite sequence. 

The f i r s t month you see the low value i n 1993. 

That i s probably j u s t a half a month of production where we 

didn't have the well on f o r the f u l l month. 

But you can see a t y p i c a l hyperbolic decline 

through the remaining — f o r the producing period of the 

w e l l . What you see t y p i c a l l y i n a carbonate — especially 

i n a carbonate zone, where you have flush production 

i n i t i a l l y and then the flow regime s e t t l e s down i n t o being 

more representative of what the q u a l i t y of the reservoir 

would indicate t o you. 

Q. What have you forecasted to be the estimated 

ultimate recovery of gas from t h i s type we l l f o r the Desert 
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Creek. 

A. On the right-hand side of the graph, s i g n i f i e d by 

EUR, we've forecasted the reserves to be around about 3.95 

BCF. 

Q. Let's turn to the next display, and describe f o r 

us how you've u t i l i z e d that number to calculate the 

reservoir area t o be depleted by that w e l l . 

A. Yes, s i r . On the next page we use the EUR that 

we gained from the decline-curve analysis, and the equation 

f o r the EUR, which i s 43,560 times the area, times the 

height, times the porosity, times the quantity 1 minus 

water saturation, times the i n i t i a l minus the abandonment 

gas formation volume factor, to back i n t o or solve f o r A, 

the area th a t we expect to be drained by t h i s w e l l . 

From log analysis, we determined the height, 21 

fe e t , porosity of 13 percent, water saturation of 28 

percent. 

The remaining elements of the equation are B g i, 

B g a, which are the i n i t i a l gas formation volume factor and 

the abandonment gas formation volume factor, and those are 

purely calculations o f f of additional pressure and 

abandonment pressure. 

And the i n i t i a l pressure of 3640 pounds we 

acquired through pressure t e s t i n g i n wells i n the Desert 

Creek. 
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1 The abandonment pressure of 750 pounds i s an 

2 assumption based o f f of the current l i n e pressures and the 

3 rates necessary t o maintain an economic wel l and the 

4 drawdown required. 

5 What we did was, we used those — the i n i t i a l 

6 pressure, the abandonment pressure, came up with B g i of 206 

7 standard cubic feet per reservoir cubic feet — i n other 

8 words, i f you had one cubic foot of gas down i n the 

9 reservoir, i t would be 206 cubic feet at the surface — a 

10 value of 40 f o r the abandonment factor, plugged those 

11 values i n t o the EUR equation, solved f o r area and came up 

12 w i t h a drainage area of 288 acres. 

13 Q. Based upon t h i s calculation, then, what i s your 

14 recommendation to the Examiner as the i n i t i a l spacing t o 

15 apply t o the Desert Creek i f he chooses to establish that 

16 as a separate pool? 

17 A. We recommend to apply a spacing of 32 0 acres i n 

18 the Desert Creek. 

19 Q. Let's turn now to the next display. You've got a 

20 production p l o t shown f o r the Ute 16 well? 

21 A. Yes, we did the — The next p l o t i s f o r the Ute 

22 16. Again, i t ' s a similar analysis, t h i s time i n the 

23 Ismay. 

24 The graph shows the production h i s t o r y of the 

25 w e l l . And again, t y p i c a l of a t i g h t carbonate, y o u ' l l see 
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1 the hyperbolic performance early on i n the l i f e . 

2 And we've forecasted an EUR of 563 m i l l i o n cubic 

3 feet of gas. 

4 Q. Again, did you apply the same method and f i n d an 

5 Ismay w e l l t h a t you had confidence i n , represented a wel l 

6 ch a r a c t e r i s t i c of the performance to be expected from an 

7 Ismay-producing well? 

8 A. Yes, s i r , I did. I worked with Mr. Hornbeck, and 

9 we examined the q u a l i t y of the reservoir across the f i e l d , 

10 determined th a t t h i s did not have any — wasn't any 

11 d i f f e r e n t from the other wells. And again, t h i s w e l l had 

12 modern logs on i t i n the Ismay. 

13 From Exhibit 9, y o u ' l l notice t h a t the Ute 4 i s 

14 i n the Ismay. That's an old w e l l , i t doesn't have modern 

15 logs. 

16 And the Ute 8 i s i n the Ismay too. The Ute 8 i s 

17 a recompletion t o the Ismay, but i t ' s a horizontal w e l l and 

18 volumetric analysis would be pr e t t y d i f f i c u l t and overly 

19 complex when there's a better example i n the Ute 16. 

20 Q. Again, you've applied your engineering judgment 

21 and forecasted an ultimate recovery f o r the well? 

22 A. Yes, s i r , we have. 

23 Q. And that number i s j u s t over ha l f a BCF? 

24 A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

25 Q. A l l r i g h t . Then you went to the next page. 
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1 Again, t h a t ' s the same formula you used t o solve f o r area? 

2 A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

3 Q. And you have plugged i n your EUR estimate f o r the 

4 type w e l l , put i n the appropriate values and solved the 

5 equation? 

6 A. Yes, s i r , I have. 

7 Q. And what was your end r e s u l t of t h a t c a l c u l a t i o n ? 

8 A. We found a drainage area of 39 acres. 

9 Q. A l l r i g h t . Based upon t h a t engineering study, 

10 what i s your recommendation t o the Examiner f o r the i n i t i a l 

11 spacing t o be e s t a b l i s h e d f o r the Ismay pool? 

12 A. We recommend an i n i t i a l spacing i n the Ismay pool 

13 of 160 acres. 

14 Q. Okay. A l l r i g h t , l e t ' s go t o the next d i s p l a y , 

15 l o o k i n g a t the Ute 18 w e l l . 

16 A. The next d i s p l a y , the Ute 14 w e l l — 

17 Q. I'm s o r r y , the Ute the 14. 

18 A. — t h i s i s a Lower Barker Creek t e s t , and what we 

19 want t o show i s t h a t the c u r r e n t 640-acre spacing i n the 

20 Lower Barker Creek was adequate. 

21 And what we want t o show through the next few 

22 pages i s t h a t the Ute 14 was o r i g i n a l l y producing i n the 

23 Lower Barker Creek. 

24 I n 1990, we recompleted the Ute 12, which i s on 

25 E x h i b i t 9 a l s o , t o the Lower Barer Creek. We saw 
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1 i n t e r f e r e n c e between the w e l l s . I t made us f e e l 

2 comfortable t h a t the c u r r e n t spacing w i l l e f f i c i e n t l y 

3 recover the reserves i n the Lower Barker Creek. 

4 Q. You as an engineer have some choices of methods 

5 by which t o come t o conclusions about w e l l spacing? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. You've shown us a volu m e t r i c s o l u t i o n . Here i n 

8 the Lower Barker Creek you have some a c t u a l f i e l d s t u d i e s 

9 of the i n t e r f e r e n c e of one w e l l ' s performance on the 

10 performance of a second well? 

11 A. Yes, s i r . 

12 Q. When we look a t the 14 w e l l and compare i t t o the 

13 performance of the 12 — 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. — take us along the p l o t of the 14 w e l l ' s 

16 pr o d u c t i o n — 

17 A. Okay. 

18 Q. — and show us what's happened t o the forecasted 

19 u l t i m a t e recovery of the 14 w e l l a t the p o i n t i n time when 

20 i t has t o compete i n t h i s r e s e r v o i r w i t h the Ute 12. 

21 A. Okay. 

22 Q. A l l r i g h t ? 

23 A. I f you look a t the Ute 14 w e l l , the time p e r i o d 

24 e s p e c i a l l y from 1976 u n t i l 1990, y o u ' l l see t h a t the w e l l ' s 

25 e s t a b l i s h e d a p r e t t y c o n s i s t e n t d e c l i n e . I f you f o r e c a s t 
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1 t h a t decline out, you come up with an EUR of approximately 

2 42 BCF of gas. 

3 Q. A l l r i g h t , and that's the number over i n the f a r 

4 r i g h t column tha t was o r i g i n a l l y forecast as the EUR for 

5 t h i s w e l l without interference? 

6 A. Yes, s i r . 

7 Q. A l l r i g h t . I n about 1990 something's happened to 

8 the performance of t h i s well where the actual production i s 

9 less than the forecasted l e v e l of performance? 

10 A. Yes, s i r . 

11 Q. What happened? 

12 A. I n 1990, on the next page, we've recompleted the 

13 Ute 12 i n t o the Lower Barker Creek. 

14 And you can see from that p l o t that i t has 

15 established a pr e t t y good decline and has forecasted 

16 reserves of approximately 24 BCF of gas. 

17 Q. Okay. So when we look at the f a r r i g h t columns 

18 f o r the performance p l o t on the Ute 12, the EUR represents 

19 the recovery f o r the Number 12 as i t competes against the 

20 Number 14? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. Okay. When we go beyond that and look at the 

23 next p l o t , what are we looking at? 

24 A. When we look at the next p l o t , i t ' s the p l o t of 

25 the Ute 14 as the reserves would be forecasted out today or 
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any time since 1990, and i t shows that the o r i g i n a l EUR of 

42 BCF has been reduced approximately t o 2 9 BCF, showing 

th a t the wel l i s i n competition with the Ute 12 and tha t 

they're competing f o r the same reserves. 

Q. Okay. How do you analyze that as a reservoir 

engineer? What does that t e l l you? 

A. I t t e l l s us r e a l l y two things. 

F i r s t of a l l , that the Ute 12 and Ute 14 are i n 

communication on 640 acres. 

The second thing i t t e l l s us, too, i s tha t from 

the f i r s t p l o t of the Ute 14 we looked at, we had an EUR of 

42 BCF. I f you add up the EUR of the Ute 12 at 24 and the 

new EUR of the Ute 14 at 29, you come up with 53 BCF. 

So even though they are competing f o r the same 

reserves, they've increased the recovery from 42 to 53 BCF. 

So the Ute 12 w i l l recover an additional 11 BCF that 

wouldn't have been recovered solely by the Ute 14. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . Pretty good evidence t o you, then, as 

a reservoir engineer that we ought to leave the spacing 

alone f o r those wells that are s t i l l producing out of t h i s 

Lower Barker Creek? 

A. Yes, s i r , i t i s . 

One l a s t thing to point out, too. On the Lower 

Barker Creek wells, y o u ' l l see that they have a p r e t t y low 

decline rate, and they have a long l i f e i n the wells too. 
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And e s s e n t i a l l y i n the Ute 12 Section and the Ute 14 

s e c t i o n , j u s t l o o k i n g a t how long they're going t o be 

p r o d u c t i v e , i t would take a long time under the c u r r e n t 

r u l e s before we could go i n and complete i n a d i f f e r e n t 

zone or d r i l l a new w e l l t o produce from a d i f f e r e n t zone. 

Q. Let me explore t h a t t o p i c w i t h you i n terms of 

your e x p e r t i s e as a r e s e r v o i r engineer. 

You're de a l i n g w i t h a l o n g - l i v e d w e l l t h a t ' s 

producing out of the Lower Barker Creek. What k i n d of 

c u r r e n t pressures are you de a l i n g with? 

A. I t ' s c u r r e n t l y 1500 pounds, 1700 pounds, i n t h a t 

range. 

Q. A l l r i g h t . And how long a l i f e do we s t i l l have 

remaining f o r the production out of t h a t i n t e r v a l ? 

A. We have a t l e a s t a 20-year l i f e , i f not longer. 

Q. Do you have a r e a l i s t i c o p t i o n as a r e s e r v o i r 

engineer t o take any of those kinds of w e l l s and commingle 

i t w i t h p r o d u c t i o n out of the Desert Creek or the Ismay? 

A. Not r i g h t now. They're a t — I n the Lower Barker 

Creek we're a t 1500 t o 1700 pounds of pressure. From our 

t e s t s we are approximately 3600 pounds i n the Desert Creek 

and the Ismay. So i t wouldn't be prudent t o combine the 

two t o g e t h e r . 

Q. A l l r i g h t . So you e i t h e r have t o postpone the 

d r i l l i n g of a w e l l f o r Ismay or Desert Creek pr o d u c t i o n on 
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current 640 spacing u n t i l you're ready to abandon that 

wellbore's performance out of the Desert Creek, the Lower 

Desert Creek? 

A. Yes, s i r , that's correct. 

Q. And under current rules, you can't have any more 

wells than one per section? 

A. That's correct. 

Q. I f the rules are changed as Meridian proposes to 

do i t , what does that afford you as a reservoir engineer? 

A. I t affords us r e a l l y the opportunity t o develop 

the Desert Creek and the Ismay i n a timely fashion and also 

to develop them i n a method that's going to be compensatory 

wi t h the reservoir q u a l i t i e s . 

I n other words, we don't expect those zones to 

drain 640 acres, and we don't expect them to be f u l l y 

drained by a 640-acre spacing. 

So i f we go with the current rules and j u s t wait, 

we w i l l s t i l l never f u l l y develop those two zones. 

Q. I n addition, you're dealing with the complexities 

of having a p o l i t i c a l pool — that i s , the gross 

Pennsylvanian i n t e r v a l — that r e a l l y consists of at least 

four or more separate sources of supply? 

A. Yes, s i r , that's correct. 

Q. And you know that as a reservoir engineer, don't 

you — 
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1 A. Yes, s i r . 

2 Q. — that they are pressure-separated? 

3 A. Yes, s i r . 

4 Q. And i n terms of reservoir management of t h i s 

5 production, you need some more pools — 

6 A. Yes, we do. 

7 Q. — with t h e i r own special rules? 

8 A. Yes, s i r . 

9 MR. KELLAHIN: That concludes my examination of 

10 Mr. Lane. 

11 We move the introduction of his exhibits behind 

12 Exhibit Tab Number 8. 

13 EXAMINER CATANACH: Exhibit Number 8 w i l l be 

14 admitted as evidence. 

15 Mr. Vaughn, do you need some time, a couple 

16 minutes? 

17 MR. VAUGHN: I j u s t have one basic question, I 

18 thi n k . 

19 EXAMINATION 

20 BY MR. VAUGHN: 

21 Q. Mr. Lane, I j u s t wanted to ask, was interference 

22 from the 1990 recompletion i n Ute Number 12 seen i n the Ute 

23 Number 11 well? Did anything show up there? 

24 A. I don't know; the Ute Number 11 i s TA'd. 

25 Q. I believe i t — Is n ' t that i n the same proposed 
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pool? 

A. (No response) 

Q. I guess the question arose because i t seems close 

t o the other w e l l where there was something n o t i c e d . 

A. I'm not sure on the h i s t o r y of the 11, but I know 

i t ' s been TA'd f o r a w h i l e . 

Q. Okay. 

A. I f i t i s producing, or i f i t was producing at. the 

time, i t would have been e f f e c t i v e , but — 

Q. I n both cases, there's nothing t h e r e t o see. 

Did you n o t i c e any other i n t e r f e r e n c e i n any 

other w e l l i n the whole area? 

A. No. There's one other Lower Barker Creek 

completion. I t ' s i n the Ute 9, i t ' s i n Colorado. And t h a t 

one i s questionable whether i t ' s i n t e r f e r e n c e or whether 

i t ' s j u s t close t o the end of the l i f e on the w e l l . 

MR. VAUGHN: Okay, t h a t ' s a l l the questions I 

have. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. Lane, what i n f o r m a t i o n do you have on the 

drainage c h a r a c t e r i s t i c s of the Upper Barker Creek? 

A. We have the — as Mr. Hornbeck t e s t i f i e d t o , we 

have one w e l l t h a t produces out of the Upper Barker Creek, 

the Ute Com 1, which i s commingled w i t h the Lower Barker 
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1 Creek. 

2 The reasoning behind requesting 32 0-acre spacing 

3 versus the current 640 i s that the production rates we've 

4 seen out of the Upper Barker Creek i n the Ute Com 1 and the 

5 rate we tested out of the Ute 24, which i s the current 

6 Desert Creek completion, indicate that the Upper Barker-

7 Creek i s more simila r to the Desert Creek than i t i s to the 

8 Lower Barker Creek. 

9 Q. I n terms of producing capability? 

10 A. I n terms of producing c a p a b i l i t y . 

11 Q. The differences i n the drainage areas i s , i n your 

12 opinion, a t t r i b u t a b l e to d i f f e r e n t l i t h o l o g i e s and 

13 d i f f e r e n t permeability and porosity w i t h i n the reservoirs? 

14 A. Yes, s i r . 

15 Q. I s there any other factors that contribute t o 

16 them? 

17 A. No. 

18 Q. Within any given section there's probably going 

19 t o be some Ismay gas reserves that are l e f t because of the 

20 small drainage areas; i s that correct? 

21 A. Yes, s i r . 

22 Q. You don't intend on f u l l y developing with four 

23 wells each section i n t h i s pool? 

24 A. I think that — I f I understand where you're 

25 headed, I think i t ' s s imilar t o the BLM representative's 
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1 question about how we would develop the d i f f e r e n t pools. 

2 And what we would do i s look at i t on an economic basis and 

3 develop i t t h a t way. 

4 I n other words, we want t o have the a b i l i t y t o 

5 recomplete and commingle i n the same wellbores. And i f we 

6 would d r i l l an additional well i n a section, we would 

7 examine the p o s s i b i l i t y of d r i l l i n g from the same d r i l l 

8 pad. 

9 And i f there was a case where the reservoirs 

10 weren 1t i n close enough pressure — current pressure 

11 conditions, then we could have commingled them. 

12 Q. Chances are, you're only going t o d r i l l two wells 

13 per section, probably, maximum; i s that r i g h t ? Or i s that 

14 yet t o be determined? 

15 A. That's yet to be determined. 

16 Q. I t could be more than two? 

17 A. Yes, s i r . 

18 Q. I f the spacing i s determined t o be correct i n the 

19 320-acre pools, the only — Well, never mind. 

20 The f i v e staked locations that you currently have 

21 proposed — 

22 A. Yes, s i r . 

23 Q. — what completions are those proposed t o be in? 

24 What i n t e r v a l s are those proposed t o be completed in? 

25 A. They'll o r i g i n a l l y be f o r the Desert Creek. 
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But as Mr. Hornbeck s a i d , we're i n a l e a r n i n g 

stage and w e ' l l probably t e s t the other zones a l s o . 

Q. With the p o s s i b i l i t y of commingling one or more 

zones? 

A. Yes, s i r . 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, I have no f u r t h e r 

questions of Mr. Lane. 

MR. KELLAHIN: I have no f u r t h e r questions f o r 

t h i s witness. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: The witness may be excused. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We have a very s h o r t p r e s e n t a t i o n 

by Dean P r i c e . 

Mr. P r i c e i s a petroleum landman w i t h Meridian. 

He resides i n Farmington. 

DAVID DEAN PRICE, 

the witness h e r e i n , a f t e r having been f i r s t d uly sworn upon 

h i s oath, was examined and t e s t i f i e d as f o l l o w s : 

DIRECT EXAMINATION 

BY MR. KELLAHIN: 

Q. Mr. Pr i c e , f o r the record, s i r , would you please 

s t a t e your name and occupation? 

A. David Dean Pri c e . I'm a senior landman w i t h 

Meridian O i l , I n c . , i n Farmington, New Mexico. 

Q. Have you t e s t i f i e d before the O i l Conservation 

D i v i s i o n of New Mexico on p r i o r occasions, q u a l i f y i n g as an 
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expert witness i n the f i e l d of petroleum land matters? 

A. Yes. 

Q. You're p a r t of t h i s same area team w i t h Mr. 

Hornbeck and Mr. Lane, and you provide the land e x p e r t i s e 

f o r t h i s team? 

A. Yes. 

Q. As p a r t of your d u t i e s , have you made a study of 

the ownership i n f o r m a t i o n w i t h regards t o the ownership of 

hydrocarbons w i t h i n the proposed pool area? 

A. Yes. 

Q. I n a d d i t i o n , have you made y o u r s e l f knowledgeable 

about the o f f s e t t i n g i n t e r e s t owners, i f t h e r e are any, by 

which they are e n t i t l e d t o n o t i c e of t h i s hearing? 

A. Yes. 

MR. KELLAHIN: We tender Mr. Pri c e as an expert 

witness. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Mr. Price i s so q u a l i f i e d . 

Q. (By Mr. K e l l a h i n ) Let's go back t o our d i s p l a y 

which i s behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 3. I t ' s the index map. 

I t ' s got various c o l o r codes on the index. I t ' s i n the 

small book. 

Are you w i t h me? 

A. Yes. 

Q. Have you s u f f i c i e n t knowledge about the ownership 

t h a t you can i d e n t i f y and describe the i n f o r m a t i o n on t h i s 
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1 display? 

2 A. Yes. 

3 Q. Let's have you do that. 

4 A. Okay, we're looking i n Township 32 North, Range 

5 14 West, i n San Juan County, Colorado. We're looking at 

6 the acreage which was the current — The dashed l i n e , 

7 broken dashed red l i n e , indicates the current pool boundary 

8 f o r the Barker Creek Paradox Gas Pool. 

9 The s o l i d red l i n e , which you see o u t l i n i n g 

10 acreage on the lease, or the land p l a t , i s a proposed pool 

11 boundary. 

12 We've got indicated on the map and highlighted 

13 with a green slashed hatch mark leasehold currently held by 

14 Meridian O i l , Inc., which i n essence covers the gas r i g h t s 

15 under the Paradox Gas Pool. 

16 We also indicate with a blue hatchmark the Ute 

17 Mountain Ute Tribe leased lands — or unleased lands, 

18 indicated i n the blue hatched. 

19 In the red hachured slash marks we have acreage 

20 which i s outside the pool, which i s under lease to Amoco 

21 Production Company. 

22 I also note one error on the map. I n Section 30, 

23 the south h a l f , we have a green-hatched l i n e which shows 

24 leasehold i n Meridian O i l , Inc., and that i s cur r e n t l y Ute 

25 Mountain Ute Tribe unleased land. 
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1 Q. A l l r i g h t . We've got the diagonal running the 

2 wrong d i r e c t i o n ? 

3 A. On t h a t , yes. 

4 Q. And i t should be blue? 

5 A. I t should be — That land i s c u r r e n t l y under 

6 n e g o t i a t i o n w i t h the — 

7 Q. A l l r i g h t . 

8 A. — T r i b e . 

9 Q. And so t h a t ' s what? Section 30? 

10 A. Yes. 

11 Q. A l l of Section 30? 

12 A. No, j u s t the south h a l f . 

13 Q. South h a l f i s color-coded wrong. A l l r i g h t . 

14 With the exception of t h a t t r a c t , then, should 

15 the Examiner choose t o do so and extend the c u r r e n t 

16 boundaries as you've requested — 

17 A. Yes. 

18 Q. — the ownership w i t h i n the e n t i r e boundary i s 

19 c o n s i s t e n t and uniform? 

20 A. Yes. 

21 Q. When we look a t any e x i s t i n g producing spacing 

22 u n i t w i t h i n the c u r r e n t pool, the ownership of t h a t 

23 p r o d u c t i o n w i t h t h a t — i n t h a t spacing u n i t i s common t o 

24 the ownership t h a t o f f s e t s t h a t spacing u n i t w i t h i n the 

25 pool? 
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1 A. Yes. 

2 Q. Okay. And the only point of p o t e n t i a l difference 

3 where we might have another operator other than Meridian 

4 would be i n the event that production i n the pool i s such 

5 th a t Section 27 i s included beyond i t s current north-half 

6 quarter section? 

7 A. Yes. 

8 Q. Northwest quarter section? 

9 A. Northwest quarter section, that's correct. 

10 Q. A l l r i g h t . As part of your duties, did you cause 

11 n o t i f i c a t i o n of t h i s hearing — 

12 A. Yes. 

13 Q. — to be sent to parties that would share i n 

14 production w i t h i n the pool? 

15 A. Yes. 

16 Q. And how do we f i n d that information? 

17 A. Through a record check and through a leasehold 

18 record check of our company records, and determined the 

19 ownerships and found t h e i r names and addresses and mailed 

20 them copies of the hearing notice and Application, and also 

21 the o f f s e t owners. 

22 Q. I n addition, did you provide the Examiner with 

23 copies of some of the correspondence between and among the 

24 other regulatory agencies, and that's contained behind 

25 Exhibit Tab Number 1? 
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A. Yes, t h a t was subsequent t o the f i r s t n o t i c e of 

the hearing, and j u s t exchanges between the Department of 

the I n t e r i o r and the NMOCD and your o f f i c e , a t our request. 

MR. KELLAHIN: A l l r i g h t , s i r . That concludes my 

examination of Mr. Pri c e . 

We would move the i n t r o d u c t i o n of the e x h i b i t s 

contained behind E x h i b i t Tab Number 1. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: E x h i b i t Number 1 w i l l be 

admitted as evidence. 

MR. VAUGHN: No questions. 

EXAMINATION 

BY EXAMINER CATANACH: 

Q. Mr. P r i c e , i s — The e n t i r e leasehold i n t e r e s t 

h e l d by Meridian, i s t h a t one — I s t h a t a s i n g l e lease 

from the Indians? 

A. No, i t ' s — There are a number of leases w i t h i n 

the Paradox Gas Pool. 

O r i g i n a l l y there were a number of leases, and 

they were put together i n a c o n s o l i d a t i o n p l a n . And under 

t h a t c o n s o l i d a t i o n plan i t was determined i t would be 

t r e a t e d more or less l i k e one b i g lease. 

Meridian owns a l l the gas r i g h t s under t h a t . 

Amoco and Conoco and Meridian s p l i t the o i l r i g h t s under 

t h a t c o n s o l i d a t i o n agreement. 

The Ute Mountain Ute Tribe i s the s i n g l e r o y a l t y 
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owner under the ent i r e pool. 

Q. I don't know how — I'm not f a m i l i a r with how 

Indian leases are set up, but do you know i f i n f a c t the 

ownership i s common underlying t h i s whole area? 

What I'm saying i s , I've seen ce r t a i n times where 

you might have d i f f e r e n t beneficiaries under the Indian — 

under Indian leases. 

A. A l l checks are made payable t o the Bureau of 

Indian A f f a i r s f o r the benefit of the Ute Mountain Ute 

Tribe, and — 

A. As fa r as you know, i t ' s a l l commonly owned? 

A. They are a l l — Yes. And t h i s i s — I understand 

what you're saying, that there were — you know, there are 

other t r i b e s with other situations where a l l o t t e e s are 

given separate r o y a l t i e s , and that i s n ' t the case i n t h i s 

instance. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay, that's a l l I have, Mr. 

Kellahin. 

MR. KELLAHIN: Mr. Examiner, because of the 

complexity, I think, of the issue, taking an e x i s t i n g pool 

and subdividing i t and then developing rules f o r what i s 

t r u l y a unique circumstance of dealing with exploration 

opportunities w i t h i n a very d i f f i c u l t t e r r a i n management 

problem, and the concerns of the Native Americans that own 

those properties, Mr. Alexander and I , with the aid of the 
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team t h a t has t h i s r e s p o n s i b i l i t y , have d r a f t e d a proposed 

order f o r discussion purposes. 

We'd l i k e t o share t h a t w i t h you and the other 

p a r t i c i p a n t s today t o give you a t l e a s t a s t a r t i n g p o i n t on 

how you might organize the approval of t h i s A p p l i c a t i o n , i f 

you chose t o do so. 

We've taken the l i b e r t y of suggesting some unique 

s o l u t i o n s f o r c o n s i d e r a t i o n , i n c l u d i n g the f l e x i b i l i t y of 

downhole commingling applied t o t h i s p a r t i c u l a r resource, 

procedures f o r nonstandard l o c a t i o n s . 

The testimony was t h a t we are p a r t i c u l a r l y 

s e n s i t i v e t o the d u p l i c i t y of wellbores, and we're going t o 

t r y t o manage the surface disturbance t o minimize t h a t 

adverse impact, but we need t o more a p p r o p r i a t e l y access 

these m u l t i p l e r e s e r v o i r s . 

And so we've suggested some t h i n g s i n t h i s order 

t h a t are b i t s and pieces out of the coal gas pool r u l e s and 

other r u l e s t h a t we commonly u t i l i z e , t r y i n g t o c r a f t a 

f l e x i b l e set of procedures t h a t made common-sense s o l u t i o n s 

a v a i l a b l e t o the operator and t o the i n t e r e s t owners. And 

so I have t h a t t o share w i t h you. 

This i s an unusual circumstance where you have 

such a tremendous v e r t i c a l distance, and f o r whatever 

reason i t was put i n t o a pool. I t ' s l a r g e l y unique. 

I t i s the custom, p r a c t i c e and h i s t o r i c a l 
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d e c i s i o n of t h i s agency t h a t you deal w i t h resources by 

d e f i n i n g separate common sources of supply. That i s the 

fundamental conservation b u i l d i n g block f o r the State of 

New Mexico. 

Here, we've taken f o u r or f i v e or s i x separate 

sources of supply and put them under one pool . 

I t doesn't work anymore. We need a b e t t e r , more 

ap p r o p r i a t e s o l u t i o n t h a t i s c e r t a i n l y c o n s i s t e n t w i t h what 

you do. 

The reason we d i d n ' t suggest i n f i l l d r i l l i n g i s 

t h a t i t i s co n t r a r y t o the est a b l i s h e d p r a c t i c e . I n f i l l 

d r i l l i n g a p p l i e s t o a s i n g l e common source of supply. 

For example, you've got i n f i l l d r i l l i n g i n the 

Blanco — the Basin Dakota and Blanco Mesaverde. Each of 

those pools are a separate source of supply, so t h a t you 

know the i n f i l l w e l l i s competing f o r gas reserves i n the 

same r e s e r v o i r as the parent w e l l . 

I n f i l l w e l l s i n t h i s pool would be competing i n 

separate sources of supply. I f i t ' s a mistake i n l o g i c , 

i t ' s my mistake, because I suggested t h a t t h a t was not a 

f e a s i b l e o p t i o n because i t d i d n ' t make any sense. I t was 

my choice t o say the sense of t h i s i s t o go back t o the 

experts and have them define separate r e s e r v o i r s . 

And once we have good t e c h n i c a l data from the 

g e o l o g i s t s and the engineers, saying these are separate 
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sources of supply, then we c r a f t i n d i v i d u a l r u l e s f o r t h a t 

separate source, and t h a t ' s how we b u i l t t h i s case. 

We went back t o the s c i e n t i s t s , re-examined what 

we were doing, found the e x i s t i n g r u l e s are i n c o n s i s t e n t 

w i t h p r a c t i c e and t e c h n i c a l l y flawed. 

We've got f o u r , a t l e a s t , r e s e r v o i r s t h a t demand 

t h e i r own s o l u t i o n s , and i t ' s been an impediment t o f u t u r e 

p r o d u c t i o n . There i s s u b s t a n t i a l remaining recoverable gas 

t h a t t h i s company and i t s i n t e r e s t owners, as w e l l as other 

p a r t i c i p a n t s , ought t o enjoy and share. 

And so t h a t ' s why we've presented the case as 

we've done. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Thank you, Mr. K e l l a h i n . And 

we would appreciate the d r a f t orders. 

Mr. Vaughn, do you have anything t h a t you'd l i k e 

t o say before we — ? 

MR. VAUGHN: Thank you, Mr. Examiner, but we have 

no f u r t h e r comments. 

EXAMINER CATANACH: Okay. I expect t h a t we w i l l 

not issue an order, probably, u n t i l the t r a n s c r i p t i s 

receiv e d , which i s g e n e r a l l y about 30 days from the 

hearing. And I would venture t o say t h a t i t would be about 

30 days from the date of the t r a n s c r i p t t h a t an order i s 

issued by the D i v i s i o n . 

So about 60 days from now we can expect something 
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t o come out. 

And th e r e being nothing f u r t h e r i n t h i s case, 

Case 11,089 w i l l be taken under advisement. 

And t h i s hearing i s adjourned. 

(Thereupon, these proceedings were concluded a t 

3:18 p.m.) 

* * * 
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